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XEEEERERAGAREHBARKE Win Hanverky Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are an integrated
B EESREESRNGESLEE 2K sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for international sports
ZEEK - AKENEBSRMAE - B brands. We have two broad lines of businesses, namely Manufacturing
TEEKESHERZEEYR  mHEMER Business and Distribution and Retail Business, with geographical
M EE - PBEAEREBS - XEFER markets spanning over Europe, North America, Mainland China and
UmbroZERE AP EML BN B RIS 8 Hong Kong etc. We are the exclusive licensed distributor of Umbro
Rk #EBE( Diadora [RFEIRME - BB RE Products in the Greater China and the owner of the trademark “Diadora”
PP IZRE o in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.

AATRPEZZZRENANBRRE The Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the
RATERLD o Stock Exchange since 6 September 2006.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BERFFENKER Key Financial Information for the Last Five Years
BEt-A=t-RLEE/
Rt=A=t+-H
For the year ended 31 December/
As at 31 December
“EEAE ZEEN\FE ZETtHF ZETRE C-ETEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
BBRRA(TET) Financial Performance (HK$000)
g Revenue 2,888,002 3,487,342 3,322,400 2,487,519 2,054,091
Al Operating profit 133,208 75,447 400,123 352,967 345,038
BRETIEH ADER Profit before income tax 137,584 79,216 410,219 360,805 332,834
FERA Profit for year 107,015 26,774 334,694 283,420 255,459
AREREFEA Profit attrioutable to equity holders
FEALEF of the Company 121,539 33,325 290,259 260,600 241,542
BB (FHET) Financial Position (HK$’000)
FRBEE Non-current assets 920,750 1,008,239 719,938 584,317 433,801
REEE Current assets 1,740,662 1,768,929 1,896,482 1,364,808 820,975
RBaE Current liabilities 571,674 732,963 702,582 442,971 517,851
REEETFE Net current assets 1,168,988 | 1,035,966 1,193,900 921,837 303,124
EERE Total assets 2,661,412 | 2,777,168 2616420 1949125 1254776
BELSEARDEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,089,738 | 2,044,205 1913838 1,506,154 736,925
s Total equity 2,087,643 2,029,194 1,901,098 1,372,147 552,518
BeRBeSEYIR Cash and cash equivalents and
FEHREA=(A bank deposits with initial terms of
ZRITER over three months 674,065 363,272 580,280 567,387 200,985
BEER Operation Indicators
EFE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 27.4 28.3 32.2 34.7 36.7
BRIEE (%) Net profit margin (%) 3.7 0.8 10.1 1.4 12.4
BEEELE (9)m Gearing ratio (%)l 3.3 5.6 4.2 0.8 0.4
TEILE(£2) Current ratio (times) 3.0 2.4 2.7 3.1 16
FUIRR 2 BEH(R) Trade receivable sales period (days) 68 81 77 70 61
BFEZHEER(R) Inventory sales period (days) 88 75 63 54 49
Bt - Note:

BEEELREMEEREERR LA

04  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings and total equity.
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual results
of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Challenging Year for Manufacturing Business

2008 saw a financial crisis of unprecedented scale sweeping across
the world and its aftermath of credit crunch in all major markets
continued to impact the financial performance and positions of many
companies in 2009. Although the stock and property markets have
been recently picking up, especially during the second half of 2009 after
the financial rescues launched by governments of different countries,
the fundamental of global economy, except for certain Asian countries,
remains weak, affecting our Manufacturing Business in 2009 which
exported and sold our sportswear products substantially to Europe, and
particularly our active wear business in the US market was seriously
harmed.

During the year, we have terminated our business relationship with our
major customer, who owned a brand called NYL selling active wears in
the US. Such termination constituted the major force of decrease in our
revenue derived from this business. We only maintained the business
relationship with a customer selling outer wears in Canada in spite of its
relatively small portion of business. Currently we are only doing active
wear business with some miscellaneous partners in the US market
though we do not expect that this will contribute a significant business
towards the Group if the retail market condition in the US remains
stagnant.

For our core sportswear products exported and sold to Europe and
Asia, we are guided by our major customer that the forecasted orders
in 2010 will maintain at similar level as 2009. However, we believe the
2010 FIFA World Cup to be held at South Africa will give us opportunity
to receive additional orders during that period. In the meantime, we
cautiously consider that we may enjoy growth in orders again from our
major customer when it could pick up its sales growth in its strategic
markets.

We believe that the growth driver of our sportswear manufacturing
business will be coming from the orders of local brand customers in
the PRC. As more local brand owners are looking for international
expansion and image enhancement, they are required to work with
more world-class and well-equipped manufacturers, like us which could
produce good quality synthetic products and has maintained a high
standard of social compliance.

kEEEEBRBRAT 05
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The financial tsunami emerged in 2008 has sent many small and
medium sized manufacturers into bankruptcy or financial hardship,
but this crisis has given more opportunities to those survivors. We are
currently having hardware production capacity of approximately 6.0
million pieces of garments and its utilisation rate is approximately 60%.
Although there is a sign of labour shortage in the PRC market, we will
endeavour to use up its slack hardware capacity by filling in labour, with
sufficient training, in order to meet the demand from local brand owners
and other potential customers.

We expect 2010 will be another challenging year. Apart from capturing
opportunities, we would take extra caution and attention on other
possible threats such as rise in production costs resulted from shortage
of labour in Mainland China and appreciation of RMB. The possibility of
withdrawing financial rescue programs from governments of different
countries may impact this market sentiment again.

Fight Fit for Rebound in Distribution and Retail Business

As for our Distribution and Retail Business, it performed disappointingly
in both Mainland China and Hong Kong markets. This business segment
has experienced the most difficult year in 2009. The overstock situation
for international sport brands in the PRC sportswear market resulting
from the Beijing Olympic has impacted the markets in the current
year. These brand owners conducted clearance sales during the year
resulting in price pressure and squeezed profit margin, particularly for
Umbro Products, and the Umbro distribution business inevitably made
its first year of operating loss in the current year. However, with the
recent recovery of economy and the enhancement of spending power
of Chinese customers, we expect the loss will be reduced in 2010. The
Group will continue to consolidate its distributor base and focus on key
accounts to streamline the business. The tightened collaboration with
Umbro to develop new generation products of outstanding design and
quality is expected to help boosting the business again. We expect that
this Umbro business will become profitable in 2011.

Annual Report 2009
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In addition to the impact from economy downturn, the above-
mentioned price wars in the first and second tier cities by international
sport brands in the PRC and the swine flu outbreak during the second
to third quarters of 2009 also affected our sportswear distribution
and retail business. We however consider that this is our opportunity
and appropriate time for consolidating our retail network by shutting
down some loss making outlets and open new shops where business
potential is highly and strongly visible. In December 2009, we opened
the second soccer concept mega store “Futbol Trend” in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Hong Kong, selling products of world famous soccer, sports
brands and football clubs. We have also taken the advantage of the
poor market climate to negotiate with landlords for better or reasonable
shop rentals and lease terms. Therefore, we expect that the operating
loss of our distribution and retail business will be minimised and a
healthy foundation can be established for further expansion.

Diadora distribution business will be our focus in the coming years. It is
new and still at a development stage. We own the brand “Diadora” in
the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau and we design, manufacture, sell and
distribute Diadora Products in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
During the year, we have put resources on marketing and promotion.
We were delighted to appoint a new spokesperson, Mr. Huang Xiao
Ming, in August 2009 to help boosting the image and spurring sales
for Diadora Products in the above-named regions. We believe that
the above appointment and marketing and promotion we have taken
during the year are essential for the development of our brand image
and its awareness. To further strengthen its market base and enhance
its popularity, we will put more resources on people building, product
development and marketing aspects. We will develop and maintain
distributor base and encourage these distributors to open retail outlets
for our brand. We may also open and manage our own retail outlets or
even flagship store should we identify suitable and promising area and
locations with bright growth potential for our Diadora Products.

kEEEERFRAT 07
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Looking Ahead

Overall, again it will not be smooth sailing for the industry in the
year ahead. Looking forward, we will strive to further utilise our
spare capacity by filling in labour for demands from our major and
new customers. We will further promote our “Diadora” brand and
will target to make it become one of the most popular international
sportswear brands in the PRC market. We will continue to consolidate
and streamline our existing retail and distribution networks in order to
resume it to become profitable in these businesses. All of these efforts
aim to increase our profits and prepare ourselves for capturing future
opportunities and expansion when the overall market is returning to its
trails of growth.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to our employees for their devotion and dedication that overcome
the hurdles during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank our shareholders and business partners for their continuous
supports and recognition of our aspiration and strategies during the
current difficult time period.

Looking forward in the coming year, the Group will make every effort to
increase our overall return, and will remain vigilant and adopt prudent

business strategies to fight fit with the aim of maximising shareholders’
rewards.

LI Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2010
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Financial Review

The weak global economic market sentiment continued to impact
the Group’s business and financial performance during the year. In
Manufacturing Business, the Group decisively terminated the major loss
making business towards the US market, shut down ineffective factories
but maintained good business relationship with our key customers
and enhanced the cost effectiveness in the selling and administrative
functions.

For Distribution and Retail Business, in spite of the slow-downing
growth of shop expansion and high level of offering discounts in the
PRC sportswear market, the Group consolidated its distribution network
by tightening the credit policy and aggressively clearing its stock. All
these efforts helped improving the cashflow position of the Group.

As a result, the Group recorded a 17.2% decrease in overall revenue to
HK$2,888.0 million from HK$3,487.3 million in 2008.

Gross profit amounted to HK$791.9 million, representing a decrease
of 19.7% year-on-year. Gross profit margin also decreased from
28.3% in 2008 to 27.4% in 2009. Operating profit however surged
up from HK$75.4 million to HK$133.2 million. Operating profit for last
year included significant amount of provision for impairment losses on
certain assets resulting from the global financial turmoil in 2008 and
such provision has been greatly reduced upon the recovery of global
economy in current year.

Net finance income decreased from HK$6.7 million to HK$1.5 million
mainly attributable to the low interest rate which substantially reduced
interest income from bank deposits, although cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits of the Group significantly increased from HK$363.3
million to HK$674.1 million during the year, mainly attributable to the
cash generated from operations, and the pro-active cash conversion
effort of inventory and receivables during the year.

The effective tax rate applicable to the Group was reduced to 22.2%
and the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company increased

from HK$33.3 million to HK$121.5 million.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Business Review

The Group is an integrated manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
renowned international sports brands. The financial performances of the
two business lines, namely “Manufacturing” and “Distribution and Retail”
are summarised as below.

Manufacturing Business

The Group’s Manufacturing Business operates mainly on OEM basis for
international sports brands. Most of the Group’s products are exported
and sold to Europe and Asia. The Group has a long history and a
remarkable position in sportswear garment manufacturing. During the
year, the Group kept maintaining good business relationship with its key
customers and looking for new and potential customers. The aftermath
of financial tsunami however continued to impact the operations of
this segment during the year which eroded the positive effort and
endeavour by the management. The Group inevitably experienced
slight decreases in demand and orders for garment products from
its customers despite the fact that the global economy was showing
temporary rebound under the financial rescues by different countries.
The management considered the operating environment during the
year was difficult for Manufacturing Business, which was further
evidenced by the termination of active wear business with a major
customer owning NYL in the US market during the second quarter of
the year. The Manufacturing Business therefore eventually recorded
a 15.8% decrease in sales revenue to HK$2,387.6 million (including
inter-companies sales of HK$36.1 million), accounting for 81.7% of the
Group’s total sales revenue as compared to 80.3% for last year.

During the year, the management endeavoured to control and manage
the impact from the weak export markets. The Group carried out
vigorous measures to tighten the production and operating costs
of the business. It shut down three old and ineffective factories and
restructured internal resources to increase overall production efficiency
and maximise utilisation of the remaining factories in Mainland China.
Although these three factories were closed, the Group was able
to maintain a hardware production capacity of 6 million pieces of
garment per month and its utilisation rate was approximately 60% as
at 31 December 2009. By filling in labour to increase its utilisation, the
management expects the existing production capacity of the Group
to sufficiently satisfy the future demands when the market rebounds,
thus it is expected to keep capital expenditure at a minimum level in the
coming couple of years. The Group will also enjoy economy of scale
and the cost per garment will be reduced if production output is going
to increase.
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Business Review (Continued)
Manufacturing Business (Continued)

The aforementioned restructuring exercises helped the Group to
maintain the segmental gross profit margin at 25.2% in current year
(2008: 25.7%), although the Group earned segmental gross profit
of HK$602.2 million, which was less than the last year of HK$728.3
million. Further, the above measures pushed down the selling
and administrative expenses by approximately 55.0% and 25.0%
respectively. The Group conservatively made additional provision
for impairment losses on certain assets and receivables of HK$16.3
million even though experiencing market recovery. With the efforts of
the Group as mentioned to restructure internal operations and control
operating costs, and with the decrease in provision for impairment
losses on assets, a rebound in operating profit from HK$158.9 million in
2008 to HK$240.9 million for current year was noted. The management
is conservatively optimistic on the growth potential of both revenue and
operating profit when the market begins reviving and sales orders from
its customers resume growing.

Distribution and Retail Business

This segment includes the businesses of distribution of Umbro Products
through the T&S Group, distribution of Diadora Products through
the Winor Group and retail of multi-brand products and distribution
of merchandise through the Win Sports Group. Sales revenue of the
segment decreased by 22.9% to HK$536.5 million, representing 18.3%
of the Group’s total sales revenue as compared to 19.7% in 2008.

Year 2009 was the most difficult and challenging year for this
business segment. The over-estimated demands and so the over-
stocking situation, particularly for international sports brands after the
2008 Beijing Olympic Games, together with the unanticipated global
economic downturn, led to an over supply situation and left the Group
with no other alternative but offering deep sales discounts to clear stock
and boost sales volume and amounts during the year. Consequently,
both the sales revenue and gross profit margin of the business
significantly suffered. Segmental gross profit declined from HK$258.1
million with margin at 37.1% to HK$191.3 million with margin at 35.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business Review (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)

Segmental operating loss was HK$107.4 million (2008: HK$81.1
million). The substantial drop in both sales revenue and gross profit
of the segment was the main cause for the operating loss. Despite
the effort of the management to control operating and administrative
expenses for functions and activities, heeding the poor market
environment, the Group had to make provisions in the amount of
HK$16.3 million for impairment on goodwill, inventory and certain
receivables for this business. All these factors together explained the
reasons for the operating loss made by this segment. Further discussion
of the sales performance in each stream of this segment is set out
below:

The T&S Group possesses an exclusive right to distribute Umbro
Products in the Greater China region till 2020. This was the first loss-
making year for this business since acquisition. During the year, sales
revenue from this business decreased to HK$361.9 million (including
inter-companies sales of HK$52.8 million) against HK$566.6 million
(including inter-companies sales of HK$77.7 million) in 2008. As
discussed above, the T&S Group had to offer sales discounts to
attract customers and reduce the impact of overstocking problem,
resulting the shrink of gross profit margin of this business from 37.7%
to 31.8% during the year. Further, the T&S Group continued to review
and terminate the co-operations with some distributors with poor sales
performance in order to strengthen the distribution network and to face
the new challenge when the retail market rebounds. The T&S Group
inevitably faced the first year of disappointment, making operating
loss of HK$37.2 million during the year. However, the above efforts
improved the financial positions of T&S Group. The inventory and
account receivables of T&S Group have been substantially reduced
from HK$122.2 million and HK$136.7 million as at 31 December 2008
to HK$70.9 million and HK$47.5 million as at 31 December 2009,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2009, the T&S Group had a sales network
comprising 155 Umbro product distributors operating approximately
1,300 points-of-sales in the Greater China region (of which
approximately 1,200 were in Mainland China). The Win Sports Group is
also one of the distributors selling Umbro Products. Details of its sales
network are presented as below.
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Business Review (Continued)

Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)

Established in April 2008, the Winor Group manufactures, sells and
distributes Diadora Products in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. During the year, it recorded sales revenue of HK$58.6 million
(including inter-companies sales of HK$7.9 million), with gross profit
margin at 38.2% and incurred selling and administrative expenses of
HK$45.7 million mainly on several marketing and promotion campaigns,
trade shows and exhibitions and trademark amortisation. In August
2009, the Winor Group appointed a new spokesperson, Mr. Huang Xiao
Ming, to help boost the image and spur sales for Diadora Products.
Although the wholesales and retail markets of sportswear products in
Mainland China are still ridden with challenges, at the relentless effort of
the management in marketing and promotion, the Group continues to
be confident about the growth potential in the Mainland China market.
More details of the development of this stream of business are set out
under “Prospects” below.

As at 31 December 2009, the Winor Group had a sales network
comprising 27 Diadora product distributors operating approximately
120 points-of-sale in Mainland China. The Win Sports Group is also one
of the distributors selling Diadora Products. Details of its sales network
are presented as below.

The Win Sports Group operates mainly sportswear retail business
selling Umbro Products and Diadora Products in Mainland China and
sportswear products of various brands in Hong Kong. Compared with
last year, sales revenue from this business decreased from HK$202.8
million to HK$176.7 million and its gross profit margin, if excluding
provision for impairment on inventory, reduced from 28.7% to 26.9%.
Sharing the same problem as the T&S Group, the Win Sports Group
also had to offer discounts to boost sales which led to a decrease
in sales and profit margin. High rental expenses in Mainland China
and Hong Kong also created pressure on this business. Although the
retail market was still difficult for the current year and is expected to
remain challenging in the first half of 2010, the Group is optimistic on
the retail market in Mainland China and Hong Kong, especially during
the time when the global economy is substantially recovered and the
consumption power of the general public resumes growing again. The
management considered that during the year, it was the appropriate
time for restructuring and Win Sports Group has closed those outlets
with unsatisfactory performance and reallocated resources to those
sites and locations with promising sales and flows potentials. Further
details of which and its strategy are set out under “Prospects” below.
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Business Review (Continued)

Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the Win Sports Group had 89 mono-brand
shops in Mainland China, 80 of which were selling Umbro Products and
the remaining 9 were selling Diadora Products, and 9 self-managed
retail shops in Hong Kong, of which 3 were traded under the name
of “Futbol Trend”, 4 were under the name of “Sport Corners” and
mono-brand shops for other international sports brands made up the
rest.

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cashflow and bank facilities. Amid the global financial turmoil, the
Group still maintained a sound and healthy financial position during the
year. As at 31 December 2009, it had cash and cash equivalents and
bank deposits amounting to HK$674.1 million (31 December 2008:
HK$363.3 million). The increase was mainly attributable to the cash
generated from operations, and the pro-active cash conversion effort of
inventory and outstanding receivables during the year.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had bank borrowings amounting
to HK$68.2 million (31 December 2008: HK$113.3 million) all subject
to interest payable at floating rates and the majority of them were
denominated in RMB. The Group did not enter into any interest rate
swap to hedge against risks associated with interest rates. As at
31 December 2009, the Group still had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$371.5 million (31 December 2008: HK$439.9 million).
The gearing ratio, being total bank borrowings divided by total equity, as
at 31 December 2009, was 3.3% (31 December 2008: 5.6%).

Prospects

2009 has been challenging so far for the Group with the ripples of the
financial crisis still impacting the business environment. Although the
stock market and property market had shown signs of recovery during
the year after the financial rescues by different countries, the retail
market in Hong Kong and in the first tier cities in Mainland China is still
fiercely competitive with price war and high operating costs. However, as
there are signs that the economic downturn is stabilising and the FIFA
World Cup South Africa will be held in 2010, the Group is cautiously
optimistic about the prospect of its business next year.
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Prospects (Continued)
Manufacturing Business

Consistent effort of the Group in maintaining good business relationship
with key sports brand customers has proven its value amid the
economic slowdown. Under the harsh market situation during the year,
the Group was capable of maintaining business and only experienced
slight decrease in orders from its major customers, and the Group is
advised by the major customer that the forecast orders in 2010 could
be maintained. The Group has also endeavoured to look for orders from
new local brand customers in order to further strengthen the customer
base.

During the year, the Group completed integration of its operations and
closed three old and ineffective factories and consolidated its internal
structure in which the Group is able to effectively control and optimise
production, operating, selling and administrative costs. Cost control
has been a continuous focus of the Group regardless of the business
environment it is in.

During the past two years, the Group has invested in hardware to
boost its output capacity to 6 million pieces of garment per month
which it considers to be sufficient to satisfy production orders and sales
demands in the coming couple of years. Currently the Group is able to
produce approximately 4 million pieces of garment products per month.
By filling in labour, with sufficient training provided, the Group will be
able to increase its utilisation rate and to cater the demand from local
brand owners and other potential customers. Further, the Group will be
able to keep capital expenditures at a minimum level in the foreseeable
future and expect the cost per garment to reduce when output
increases.

Furthermore, the Group had terminated the major business of active
wear in the US market in the second quarter of the year. This move
has eliminated the possibility of incurring substantial loss again for the
business.

Looking ahead, anticipating some short-noticed business opportunities
in relation to the 2010 World Cup and with orders received from new
customers, the Group believes the top line of this segment will be
improved and the utilisation of factories of the Group will be enhanced.
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Prospects (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business

The recent recovery on economy and the booming in stock and
property markets gave life, vitality and opportunities to wholesales and
retail businesses in Mainland China and Hong Kong, especially during
the fourth quarter of 2009. Despite such rebound, the Group still keeps
a conservatively optimistic mind about the growth potential in these
markets, and expects challenges to prevail them.

For retail business, the Group will continue to consolidate the shops by
closing those with loss-making or poor performance and reallocating to
area with strong business potentials. The clearance of stock will also be
continued and the Group will strive to return it to normal level starting
in the second half of the year. Particular focus will be made to promote
our retail brand of “Futbol Trend”, of which a brand new mega shop
has been opened in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong during December 2009.

Furthermore, the Group will continue to market the “Diadora” brand
and develop differentiated products. In August 2009, the Group
appointed a new spokesperson, Mr. Huang Xiao Ming, to help boost
the image and spur sales for Diadora Products in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau.

As for Umbro, it will launch a brand new shop image and introduce
new product designs to the market under the full support of the brand
owner.

Although Distribution and Retail Business had yet delivered satisfactory
results during the year and the environment will remain tough in 2010,
the Group optimistically believes this segment as well as the Group itself
is ready to grasp opportunities and regain vigor when the market starts
on the real recovery track.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had approximately 14,400
employees (2008: approximately 17,000 employees). The Group
remunerates employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Other employee benefits
include retirement benefits, insurance, medical coverage and a share
option scheme.
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Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2009, no asset was pledged to secure banking
facilities for the Group.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s sales and purchases were mostly denominated in US
Dollars and RMB. During the year, approximately 65.8% and 29.3%
of sales were denominated in US Dollars and RMB, respectively,
whereas approximately 61.5%, 19.8% and 18.4% of purchases were
denominated in US Dollars, RMB and Hong Kong Dollars, respectively.
Further, as at 31 December 2009, approximately 60.3% and 35.9% of
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were denominated in US
Dollars and RMB, respectively.

The Group considered that the foreign currency exchange exposure
arising from the above transactions and cash balances was minimal
on the ground that Hong Kong dollars were pegged against US dollars
and the Hong Kong dollars were relatively stable against RMB during
the year. Accordingly, the Group did not use any derivative instruments
to hedge against foreign currency exposure arising from the above
transactions and cash balances during the years.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LI Kwok Tung Roy, aged 59, is our executive Director, our co-founder
and Chairman. Mr. LI is the elder brother of Mr. LEE Kwok Leung. Mr.
LI is responsible for strategic planning and overall management of our
Group. Mr. LI has over 30 years of experience in the apparel industry
and handling client relationship. Mr. LI is a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in He Yuan city,
Guangdong province of the PRC.

LAI Ching Ping, aged 59, is our executive Director, our co-founder,
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. LAl oversees the
merchandising functions including production and purchasing teams
within the Manufacturing Business of our Group and is also responsible
for the overall management of our Group. Mr. LAl has over 30 years of
experience in the apparel industry. Mr. LAl is a committee member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Yun Fu city,
Guangdong province of the PRC.

CHEUNG Chi, aged 438, is our executive Director, chief financial
officer and company secretary. Mr. CHEUNG is responsible for our
overall financial management, merger and acquisition and corporate
finance projects. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr. CHEUNG had been the
executive vice president and chief financial officer of Aspire Holdings
Ltd. which is a member of China Mobile Communications Corporation.
Mr. CHEUNG had also been the chief financial officer of eBIS Co, Ltd.,
and the financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a
senior consultant of Arthur Andersen & Co. in which he was responsible
for several initial public offering projects. He has over 17 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong
and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1992 and 2004 respectively.
Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.

LEE Kwok Leung, aged 47, is our executive Director. Mr. LEE is the
younger brother of Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. Mr. LEE is responsible for
technology implementation and overseeing the fabric knitting and dyeing
business of our Group. Mr. LEE has been with us for over 20 years after
his graduation from the York University in 1987 with a Bachelor of Arts
degree.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN Kwong Fai, aged 63, is our independent non-executive
Director. Dr. CHAN joined us in April 2006. Dr. CHAN has been in
the academic field for over 30 years and is currently an Associate
Professor at the Department of Management and Marketing of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. CHAN is also an author of
several publications in the business management area. Dr. CHAN
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
degree in Social Science in 1971 and obtained his Master of Business
Management from the University of Adelaide and Doctor of Philosophy
from the University of South Australia in 1981 and 2004 respectively.

KWAN Kai Cheong, aged 60, is our independent non-executive
Director. He joined us in April 2006. Mr. KWAN is currently the president
of Morrison & Company Limited, a business consultancy firm, and
the independent non-executive director of several listed companies in
Hong Kong including Henderson Sunlight Asset Management Limited,
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications
International Limited (also listed on the New York Stock Exchange),
Soundwill Holdings Limited and SPG Land (Holdings) Limited. He is also
the non-executive director of China Properties Group Limited and JF
Household Furnishings Limited, shares of which are both listed on the
Stock Exchange. He previously worked for Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc. and
was the president for its Asia Pacific region. Mr. KWAN was the non-
executive director of China Medical and Bio Science Limited (provisional
liguidators being appointed) until 20 May 2008. Mr. KWAN was also
previously an independent non-executive director of TS Telecom
Technologies Limited (subsequently renamed as Great World Company
Holdings Ltd on 12 December 2008, whose shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) (resigned on 23
January 2008).

Mr. KWAN completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992. He also
holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from the University
of Singapore. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

MA Ka Chun, aged 58, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. MA joined us in June 2006. Mr. MA has been in the apparel
industry for over 20 years and is currently a director of Fashionmark
Holdings Limited, principally engaging in the manufacture of apparels
for some international fashion brands with production bases in Zhuhai
and Zhongshan, the PRC. Mr. MA holds a Bachelor of Social Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong.
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WUN Kwang Vincent, aged 60, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. WUN joined us in April 2006. He is currently the managing
director of Pinefield Industries Ltd, a manufacturer of wooden products.
Mr. WUN obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Harvard University in 1979.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG Kar Bun, aged 42, is the senior operation director of our
Manufacturing Business, responsible for overseeing the Group’s supply
chain, including product research and development, product costing,
raw material procurement, garment production, quality control and
logistic arrangement. Mr. WONG joined us in July 2009 and has almost
20 years of experience in garment industry. Prior to joining us, Mr.
WONG had been the vice president in apparel product & merchandising
of Roly China Group, the director of research and development in the
apparel system of Li Ning (China) Limited and the senior fabric sourcing
manager of Levi Strauss (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. WONG obtained a
Master of Arts degree in Clothing Merchandising from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1999.

WONG Hiu Man, aged 43, is the managing director of our Distribution
Business for the brand “Umbro”. Mr. WONG joined us in 1998 and
became the group financial controller and was promoted to be our
managing director of our Distuibution Business in March 2007,
overseeing the distribution business of Umbro Products. Prior to
joining us, he held various positions, including assistant corporate
relationship manager and assistant division manager in the import/
export department in HSBC in Hong Kong for 5 years. He also worked
for BP Chemicals Limited in UK from 1990 to 1992. He was awarded a
scholarship from the Hong Kong Bank Foundation in 1986 to study for
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration at the University of Bath
in UK, and in 1988, he was also granted the Arthur Andersen Prize for
Financial Management.
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TAM Keung, aged 58, is the managing director of our Distribution
Business for the brand “Diadora” and has over 30 years of experience
in wholesale and retail industry. Mr. TAM joined us in 2003 as the sales
director of our Distribution Business for the brand “Umbro” and was
promoted to be the managing director of Distribution Business for the
brand “Diadora” in June 2008 responsible for overseeing the distribution
business of Diadora Products. Prior to joining us, Mr. TAM had been the
sales and merchandising manager of Isetan department store in Hong
Kong and the general merchandising manager of Robinson department
store in Singapore. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Chinese Arts and
Literature from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1976.

Armand A. GHIEUW, aged 59, is the managing director of our
Retail Business. Mr. GHIEUW joined us in October 2008 and has
over 30 years of experience in retailing, wholesaling and marketing
consumer products in Asia. Prior to joining us, Mr. GHIEUW had been
the director of Jockey Far East Limited and the regional marketing
manager of Triumph Intemational Overseas Limited. He also served
in senior marketing capacities with intemational brands like Levi
Strauss, Dior, and Bausch & Lomb. He obtained a Master degree in
International Management from the Thunderbird Graduate School of
Global Management in the US in 1976 and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Journalism from the San Jose State University in the US in 1975.
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The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance into the management structure and
the internal control procedures of the Group so as to ensure that all
business activities of the Group and the decision making process are
properly regulated.

During the year under review, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with the applicable code provisions and most of the
recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made enquiry of all Directors,
they all have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting
period covered by this annual report.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the
Board.

The Board is responsible for governing the Group and managing assets
entrusted by the Shareholders. Its principal responsibilities include
the formulation of the Group’s business strategies and management
objectives, monitoring and overseeing the performance of the Group,
setting the Group’s values and standards and ensuring a prudent and
effective framework of internal control is in place to enable risks to be
assessed and managed.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer and the management of the Group. The delegated
functions and work task are periodically reviewed.

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical details and
family relationships among the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 18 to 21.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the

business operation and development of the Group.
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All Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities
to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill and
diligence, contributing to the successful performance of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. The Chairman of the
Board is Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. The Chief Executive Officer is Mr.
LAI Ching Ping. There is a clear segregation between the Chairman’s
responsibility for the management of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility for the management of the day-to-day operations
of the Group’s business.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. Each of the Group’s independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of them have satisfied the independence criteria and the Company
confirmed that it has received a confirmation from each of them
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider them
to be independent.

Certain committees have been set up under the Board to supervise the
management and administrative functions of the Group. They include:

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18
April 2006 with written terms of reference. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The
Company’s emolument policy is to ensure that the remuneration offered
to employees including executive Directors and senior management
is based on skills, knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the
Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages are also determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. The
emolument policy for independent non-executive Directors, mainly
comprising directors’ fees, is subject to an annual assessment with
reference to the market standard. Individual director and senior
management would not be involved in deciding their own remuneration.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed, determined the remuneration packages for the Directors
and approved terms of executive Directors’ service agreement. The
remuneration of Directors comprises basic salary, pensions and
discretionary bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in note 23(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Dr. CHAN Kwong
Fai (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong, two
of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and the management of the Board succession.
It carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship with reference to the selection guidelines which include
appropriate professional knowledge and industry experience, personal
ethics, integrity and personal skills. The Nomination Committee
also considers referrals and engagement of external recruitment
professionals when necessary and makes recommendations to the
Board for selection and approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
recommended the re-election of all the Directors to the Board for
approval and considered the appointment and resignation of Directors.

Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. WUN Kwang
Vincent (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching Ping and Mr.
MA Ka Chun, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 April 2006 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing, overseeing
and supervision of the effectiveness of our financial reporting processes,
internal control systems and risk management.
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review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
2009 consolidated financial statements and 2009 unaudited interim
consolidated financial information with a focus on compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

discussion with the external auditor and the management on
accounting policies and practices;

review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system;

consider the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of
staff of our Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training programmes and budget;

approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the external
auditor; and

review of independence of the external auditor and recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor.

BREEEHEERBYFNTESHERK
BEE(ER) RBXLE  BRAEEEL
RERBAL -

Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong
(Chairman), Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai and Mr.
MA Ka Chun, all being independent non-executive Directors.
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2EHER Attendance of Meetings

EECTHETEESESR FHEES The Board holds regular Board meetings, Remuneration Committee
2% BEREES %&%V;EQQ meeting, Nomination Committee meeting and Audit Committee
B ONMAEENEL CBRERIR meetings to discuss the Group ’s businesses, operations, development
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and conduct. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
attendance record of each Director at the aforesaid meetings is set out
below:

BE-ZTAF+=-A=t+-HL
FELHE RERLESRRY
Number of meetings attended/
eligible to attend for the year ended
31 December 2009

¥HZEE EREEET ENZEE
E=gER = a8 -
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee = Committee = Committee
EEMF Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
TEREE S Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy'? 5/5 1/1 1/1 N/A
BEF K4k Mr. LAl Ching Ping? 5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A
REXE Mr. CHEUNG Chi 5/5 N/A N/A N/A
TEREE Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 4/5 N/A N/A N/A
AEEEE Mr. CHOW Chi Wai 0/0 N/A N/A N/A
EEEE LS Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor® 2/2 N/A N/A N/A
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
R pEfE 128 Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai25 4/5 11 N/A 2/2
BB ke Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong'¢ 5/5 1/1 N/A 2/2
BREEE Mr. MA Ka Chungs 4/5 N/A 1/1 2/2
BIER s Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent*5 5/5 N/A 1/1 2/2
Rt - Notes:

1. FHWEEEHE
2. ¥FMEEEIR
3. REZEEME
4. REEZEEIR
5. BREEEME
6. BEREEEIR

1.

7. BAEBARERZEEAF-A-ThAER 7.

FHTESE -

8. HERLER-EZRZE

NE-RZThBEEZ 8.

ERPTES  YA-ZTEAFLANER

BHE -
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Members of Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Members of Nomination Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee
Members of Audit Committee
Chairman of Audit Committee

Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned as an executive Director with effect from 29
January 2009.

Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor was appointed as an executive Director on 29
January 2009 and resigned with effect from 8 July 2009.
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Accountability and Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. In preparing the financial statements, the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been adopted. The
principal accounting policies, which have been consistently applied to
all the years, adopted for the preparation of financial statements of the
Group are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s external auditor’s responsibility on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report
on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:

FHET

RIS HE Nature of services HK$’000
B PR TS Audit services 3,000
IR BARTE (1) Non-audit services (Note) 759
3,759

e FRERBEREHTHMEEN &
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M EPE 2
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BAAEERNREEFE (BEME &
& - ARESIREREE) Y

AEEHOHEE BEREEREEES
FRE$ R - ARBEMRIBEEERER MG
FERE  BRHABAHERRMRE
K UEBERBEEEFERMORERE
URBEREBZERZ

REBEFR  ESERNAEERINERE
FIER R » WHLRE R -
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Note: Non-audit services include review of interim financial information, certain
agreed-upon procedures and taxation related services.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control procedures
and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system which includes financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The
Group’s internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business objective.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of,

and is satisfied with, the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution
and retailing of garment products, including sportswear and related
accessories. Sales are primarily under an OEM arrangement to
customers in Europe, North America and Asia and distribution and retail
modes in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 51 of this report.

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HK1.5 cents per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2009, subject to Shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Monday, 26 April 2010, payable to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Thursday, 22 April 2010. The final dividend will be paid on
or about Monday, 10 May 2010.

The Board has also declared an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per
Share for the six months ended 30 June 2009.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
22 April 2010 to Monday, 26 April 2010 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for entitlement to the final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2009, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 April 2010.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 53 to 54 of this report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions to Shareholders were HK$1,237.4 million, comprising
share premium of HK$666.9 million, share-based payment reserve of
HK$9.3 million, contributed surplus of HK$528.3 million and retained
earnings of HK$32.9 million.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
reserve and the contributed surplus of the Company may be distributed
subject to the provision of the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”) and provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debt as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donation

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations totaling HK$0.6 million.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this report.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year under
review.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
Mr. LAl Ching Ping
Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung
Mr. CHOW Chi Wai
(resigned on 29 January 2009)
Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor
(appointed on 29 January 2009 and resigned on 8 July 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

Mr. MA Ka Chun

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent

As announced on 29 January 2009, Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned as
an executive Director upon his retirement with effect from 29 January
2009.

As announced on 8 July 2009, Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor resigned
as an executive Director with effect from 8 July 2009 due to his other
business engagements which require more of his dedication and has
remained as an adviser to the Group for a period of six months up to 7
January 2010.

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. MA Ka Chun and Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 18 to 21.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than six months’ written notice. Under the
service contracts, each of the executive Directors is entitled to an
annual discretionary management bonus in respect of each complete
financial year of the Group as the Board may approve.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors does not enter into
any service agreements with the Company but has a fixed term of office
for three years.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during
the financial year.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company (if any) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which any such director or
chief executive has taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) and were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company

HARLQE
ERB D
gk ¢E| Percentage of
EENSR g4 Number interest in
Name of Directors Capacity of Shares the Company*
TEREE FEFD R 743,769,967 58.64%
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy Interests in controlled company (MgzE1)
(Note 1)
REVRE AR 4,186,000 0.33%
Mr. LAl Ching Ping Personal interest (FftzE2)
(Note 2)
REEE EPN £ 10,650,000 0.84%
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Personal interest (MFEE3)
(Note 3)
ZTEREE BAER 2,000,000 0.16%
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung Personal interest (FftzE4)
(Note 4)

Y ASHIRBEBECEEAF A=t
HE #471,268,400,0008 IR 10 5T & °
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*  The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2009.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy holds 70% of the issued share capital of Quinta
Asia Limited (“Quinta”). Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy has a controlling interest
in Quinta and is therefore deemed to be interested in Quinta’s interest in
the Company for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Lai Ching Ping holds the
remaining 30% of the issued share capital of Quinta (representing an indirect
interest in 223,130,990 Shares or approximately 17.59% shareholding in
the Company).

Mr. LAl Ching Ping is interested in 4,186,000 Shares held.
Mr. CHEUNG Chi is interested in 650,000 Shares held and is also taken to
be interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for 10,000,000 Shares

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
2,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(b) AAEEEEB(EEREHRB (b) Long positions in the shares of the Associated
BN IRGEHR Corporations of the Company (as defined in the SFO)

{hAEE A E

ERADL

Percentage of

LR BEOEE interest in

EENE Associated 5% Number associated

Name of Directors corporation Capacity of shares corporation

TEIREE Quinta B AR 7 70%

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy Personal interest
BEFLEE Quinta BARER 3 30%

Mr. LAl Ching Ping

Personal interest

BREXFrIRBEN  R-FBAF+Z
B=t—H E% THARIKES
BNBBEASEERIFEREBLR
AREMEEE (TR RE SRR
PIZEXVER) 2Rt ~ BRI REZHZ
HERIAR ©

ZEBNFFH

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors, chief executive(s) or any of their respective associates
had any interest or short position, whether beneficial or non-
beneficial, in the shares, the underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO).
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2009, as far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive(s) of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

2o 336 of the SFO.
BB FE Long positions in the Shares
AR RAE) R
BHABE D
Approximate
EHEEE percentage of
41 5% Number interest in
Name Capacity of securities the Company*
Quinta BEnER 743,769,967 58.64%
Beneficial interest
Templeton Asset Management Ltd. REK®E 152,685,579 12.04%

Investment manager

* BHAETIRBR-ZEZAF+=A=+-H
T 3%171,268,400,0008% R D5t & ©
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*

The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Company
had not been naotified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short position in the
Shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the

Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Pre-IPO Share Options

In recognition of the contributions made by employees and a consultant
of the Group towards its growth and success, on 10 May 2006, Pre-
IPO Share Options (the exercise of which would entitle these grantees
to an aggregate of 44,400,000 Shares) have been granted by the
Company to, and accepted by, among others, certain employees.

Movements of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended 31
December 2009 are as follows:

BRARERABRESE
Number of Pre-IPO Share Options
BRTEE
Exercise price RZZENF RERTE RERXY RZBENEF
per Share TR —-B-H Exercised Lapsed +=A=+-H
AREA Br HBEBERY Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee HK$ Vestingdate  period 01/01/2009 the year the year 31/12/2009
RERE 1596  06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 1,960,000 - - 1,960,000
HiTEZE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 3,960,000 - - 3,960,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 4,080,000 - - 4,080,000
09/05/2016
10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZEREE 228  06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 404,000 - - 404,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 804,000 - - 804,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 792,000 - - 792,000
09/05/2016
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
AR S ) 114 30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
Mr. CHOW Chi Waiote 09/05/2016
9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
st 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
Total

et AREREB-ZERAF-AZ+NA

EEHERITES -

ZEBNFFH

Note: Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned as an executive Director with effect from 29
January 2009.
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Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

A summary of the principal conditions attached to the Pre-IPO Share
Options is set out below:

1.

Consideration

A cash consideration of HK$1.00 has been paid by each grantee of
the Pre-IPO Share Options.

Option Period

Subject to other conditions as set out below, 10 years from the
date of the offer of the respective Pre-IPO Share Options unless
extended in writing by the Board (and approved by the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) in its absolute discretion. Each of the Pre-
IPO Share Options (to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically at the end of such option period.

Exercised Periods and Exercise Price
As set out on page 35.
Other Conditions

The grant and/or exercise of each of the Pre-IPO Share Options is
subject to the following additional conditions:

(@ the Pre-IPO Share Option cannot be exercised within the first
six months after the commencement of dealings in the Shares;

(b) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option may be made in
part or in full subject to any further restrictions imposed by the
Company, the Stock Exchange and/or the Sponsor as any of
them see fit for the purposes of obtaining the Stock Exchange
approval to the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares;

(c) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall be further
subject to any guidelines issued by the Company from time to

time in order to ensure full compliance with the Listing Rules;

(d) the Pre-IPO Share Option is personal to the relevant grantee
and may not be transferred or assigned;

Annual Report 2009



ENGEEEGE )
4. HMEH @)

(6) RITEMERDFERABERES
R EX 2R PR 98 R Eim &
R BRIBETIER TR :

i) EARAWEAREK @A) TR
AEAFWEI2ERRNITEE
RAMERABRE  HEX
TR ER DB ERATBRE
HEEBAY  HEZSHE
HEBRELES

(i) FABATEEBRAEESRAE
RIENEFNTSARKLTZE
ML BRIFRIEZERBN
BEXLE  BREIBETTILY
REEMMERT  BIEKT
FERERABERAEREHR
TEBRIEAAHEREX
o

(i) WMARAERAIAEEXD
B3 5 IR A1 B AR A A AT R SR B R
o BIRITENERABER
AEREEEEAY  HES
SU2ENESTHELEEME
~ R

H BROFMERNBREARARE

ST TR A T RERESNE R
AGERRE o

ZEBNFFH

Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

4. Other Conditions (Continued)

(e) the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already exercised)

shall lapse at the expiry of the option period as described in
paragraph 2 above or otherwise in the following manner:

(i) the grantee’s personal representatives (if any) may
exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option within 12 months from
his death, upon the expiry of which the Pre-IPO Share
Option (to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically unless extended by the Board in its absolute
discretion;

(i) the grantee’s right to exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option
shall not be affected by his/its cessation of employment,
unless such cessation of employment arises from any
serious misconduct, bankruptcy or conviction of any
criminal offence involving integrity or honesty, in which
case the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse automatically on the his/its last date
of employment with the Group;

(i) if the grantee breaches any term or condition of the Pre-
IPO Share Option as described herein, the Pre— IPO Share
Option (to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically (unless otherwise directed by the Board in
writing in its absolute discretion); and

the grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall adhere to any
undertakings or restrictions that may be further imposed on
them by the Stock Exchange or the Sponsor.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 8
August 2006, the Company has established a share option scheme
(the “Scheme” ) whereby the Board may, at their discretion, invite any
Directors, employees, consultants, professionals, customers, suppliers,
agents, partners or advisers of or contractors to the Group (subject to
the eligibility requirements as set out therein) to take up options which
entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing up to a maximum
in nominal value of 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares available for issue under
the Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing
Date unless further Shareholders’ approval has been obtained. The
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12 months ’ period up to the date of grant
to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-executive director
or their associates would not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue or an
aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 unless further Shareholders’ approval
has been obtained; and to each other eligible person would not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants have made or may make to the
Group. It also provides the eligible participants with an opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company with a view to (a) motivate
the eligible participants to optimise the performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group; and (b) attract and retain or otherwise maintain
ongoing business relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years ending
on 7 August 2016. The exercise price of options shall be determined
by the Board and shall not be less than the highest of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the options and the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
and the nominal value of a Share. An option may be exercised at any
time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not be
more than ten years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.

The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Set out below are particulars and movements of the share options
under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2009:

BREEETHEREZE
Number of share options under the Share Option Scheme
BRATEE
Exercise price RZBZNF RERTTHE RERXY RZZBRE
per Share BERH TERE -B-A Exercised Lapsed +=A=1+-H
ERA BiHAH BT Vesting Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee Date of grant HK$ date period 01/01/2009 the year the year 31/12/2009
ERELEm 30/11/2007 2.06 01/12/2008  01/12/2008 - 500,000 - (500,000) -
Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victorhoel 07/08/2016
01/12/2009  01/12/2009 - 500,000 - (500,000) -
07/08/2016
01/12/2010  01/12/2010- 500,000 - (500,000) -
07/08/2016
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) -

Mz BEREXEA-ZEZENAFELANBER

FHTES -

EEEESN

FRBET LR FEEEARAZHBRAE

AERIFDEBNEERTRAENEH

ZEBNFFH

Note:  Mr. Wong Wai Tak Victor resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 8 July 2009.

Management Contracts
No contract concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers
and suppliers respectively for the year ended 31 December 2009 were as

HERKBAOLNT ! follows:
HEEERS EERBEES L
% of Sales % of Purchases
BAREFE iER The largest customer/supplier 67.5 10.8
BREF /{HER Five largest customers/suppliers 78.6 27.4

AATWEEALTUmbroEEBAHE=Z
ENFE+ZA=+t—HLEEEAEENE
REFHB—FZ - BEBESHARME E
E FENBBZEASBEEAQATCEHITR
RE% A LM - BIEEA LT ER
£E R AK F R HFER IR -

KERERS

REELEHRA - HREMBHRRMES AT
RENETHEEARZ TERIFEEAER
5 WARE L HRAE4ATHE -

THETHEAL(EER EmARA)ER
DEIBZRB BT LR DA EET
o MARBERE LT EBRET T
ENBBENMH -

A BREEEREEBRE

SAEBEERNFMBR > XA T
K 2 & i B 2 3 Al-Aham Garment
Manufacturing Co. Ltd.([ Al-Aham ) B
—EEMFTHEFE—HFEMADiamond
Needle Factory (Jordon) Co. Ltd.
(TDiamond Needle ) B8R &&
EENYLRBIEEROEMG -

BRE% 2 54 ([BRELE 1) BAI-AhamiyeT
BEE UAXATBEEAL - ER
Diamond NeedleFPR 54 #9 52 56 PR §8
2E4EXZZTERSR - FitkDiamond
Needle# R B EENWHEA » BIK
NRINEEAL ©
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Umbro Group, being a connected person, is one of the five largest
customers to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2009. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any Shareholder owning more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company, has any interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers as disclosed above.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in
accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered into
and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary, had
been made by the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

(A) Provision of sub-contracting services to the Group

Al-Aham Garment Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (“Al-Aham”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, has been engaging Diamond
Needle Factory (Jordon) Co. Ltd. (“Diamond Needle”) as a sub-
contractor for manufacturing components of products bearing NYL
brand since the second half of the year 2004 due to the limitation in
the production capacity of our Group.

Mr. CHAN Kam Cheong (“Mr. Chan”) is the chief executive of
Al-Aham and a Connected Person of our Company. Given that
Diamond Needle is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Chan’s
brother, Mr. Chan Kam Chuen, Diamond Needle is therefore
deemed to be an associate of Mr. Chan, and hence a Connected
Person of our Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A)

Provision of sub-contracting services to the Group (Continued)

No sub-contracting fee has been paid or payable by our Group to
Diamond Needle for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Purchases of Umbro Products from the T&S Group

The T&S Group has been supplying Umbro Products to the Win
Sports Group pursuant to our Group’s distribution right under the
Umbro Distributor Agreement.

The Umbro Group is a substantial shareholder of T&S HK, hence it is
a Connected Person. And as T&S HK is an associate of the Umbro
Group, hence T&S HK is a Connected Person of our Company.

Our purchases of Umbro Products from the T&S Group amounted
to approximately HK$52,760,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009, which was below the relevant annual cap approved by the
Stock Exchange and announced to the public on 11 June 2007.

Purchases of fabrics by the Group

Oceanjade Corporation Limited (“Oceanjade”) is one of the
suppliers of Rich Form (HK) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
our Company, for fabrics and related fabric-samples (“Fabrics”) for
the production of products bearing NYL brand. We established a
business relationship with Oceanjade since 2001 and would like to
continue our relationship so long as Oceanjade is able to continue
to supply quality Fabrics at competitive pricing to us.

Given that Oceanjade is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr.
Chan’s brother, Mr. CHAN Kam Chuen, and that Mr. Chan is a
chief executive of Al-Aham, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
our Company, Oceanjade is therefore deemed to be an associate
of Mr. Chan, and hence a Connected Person of our Company.

Our purchases of Fabrics from Oceanjade amounted to
approximately HK$377,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009,
which was below the relevant annual cap approved by the Stock
Exchange and announced to the public on 19 November 2008.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

© 0

()

Sales of products bearing UMBRO brand to the Umbro Group

We are an authorised supplier of the Umbro Group for
products bearing UMBRO brand for the Umbro Group’s
distribution in the EU. We, through Win Hanverky Sportswear
Company Limited (our wholly owned subsidiary) have been
supplying such products to the Umbro Group since 2004.
Apart from engaging independent third party contractors
for the manufacture of such products, our Group has also
commenced the manufacture of these products since 2008.

Umbro International is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of our Company, hence it is a Connected Person of our
Company.

Our sales to Umbro Group amounted to approximately
HK$70,559,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009, which
was below the relevant annual cap approved by the Stock
Exchange and announced to the public on 19 November 2008.

Payment of royalty to the Umbro Group and purchases of
Umbro Products from the Umbro Group for distribution of the
Umbro Products

Pursuant to the Umbro Distributor Agreement, we distribute
various Umbro Products in the Greater China. These products
are sourced from Umbro International or suppliers approved by
the Umbro Group directly or via an internet platform operated
by the Umbro Group (“Platform”). As part of the Umbro
Distributor Agreement, we pay, through T&S HK, royalty to the
Umbro Group for our distribution of Umbro Products in the
Greater China calculated in accordance with the terms set out
therein.

Umbro International is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of our Company, hence it is a Connected Person of our
Company.

Our royalty to and purchases from the Umbro Group amounted
to approximately HK$36,898,000 and HK$11,570,000
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2009, which
was below the relevant annual caps approved by the Stock
Exchange and announced to the public on 15 October 2009.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(E) Purchases of Umbro Products from the TSG Group

Due to the long established relationship with the TSG Group, TSG
Group, one of the Umbro Group’s approved suppliers which is also
an approved supplier on the Platform, has been supplying Umbro
Products to T&S Group for distribution pursuant to our Group’s
distribution right under the Umbro Distributor Agreement.

TSG BVl is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. TSG International is a
wholly owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is an associate of
TSG BVI, hence it is also a Connected Person of our Company.

No purchases from the TSG Group has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited (“Amerseas”)

Bowker Garment Accessories Company Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Bowker Accessories Group”) and Win Hanverky Textile Limited,
subsidiaries of our Company, have been supplying certain
garment accessories and fabric, respectively, to Amerseas and its
subsidiaries (“Amerseas Group”) starting from 2007 .

TSG BVl is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. Amerseas is a wholly
owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is an associate of TSG
BVI, hence it is also a Connected Person of our Company.

Our sales by Bowker Accessories Group and Win Hanverky
Textile Limited to the Amerseas Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,198,000 and HK$8,243,000 respectively for the year ended
31 December 2009, which were below the relevant annual caps
approved by the Stock Exchange and announced to the public on
21 November 2008 and 19 August 2009 respectively.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(G) Sales of products bearing DIADORA brand to the Diadora Group

Win Hanverky Sportswear Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries have been
supplying products bearing the DIADORA brand to Diadora HK in
the past.

Upon completion of the subscription and shareholders’ agreement
entered into between, among others, our Company and Diadora
S.p.A. on 7 April 2008, Diadora S.p.A. became a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of our Company, hence it is a
Connected Person of our Company. As Diadora HK is an associate
of Diadora S.p.A., it is a Connected Person of our Company.

Our sales of products bearing DIADORA brand to the Diadora
Group amounted to approximately HK$2,961,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009, which was below the relevant annual
cap approved by the Stock Exchange and announced to the public
on 7 April 2008.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions made during the year
ended 31 December 2009 and confirmed that these transactions were
entered into:

Q)

@

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties;

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped

in accordance to the waiver previously granted by the Stock
Exchange or previous announcement.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain factual finding procedures
on the above continuing connected transactions on a sample basis
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400
“Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their factual findings for
the selected samples based on the agreed procedures to the Board
stating that:

(1) the selected samples of the transactions had been approved by the
Company’s Directors;

(2) the selected samples of the transactions in respect of provision of
goods or services by the Group were entered into in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

(8) the selected samples of the transactions were entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4) such transactions, where applicable, did not exceed the relevant
caps in accordance to the waivers previously granted by the Stock
Exchange or previous announcements.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 27 of this
report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2009 and up to the date of this report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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46 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
LI Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2010
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WIN HANVERKY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win Hanverky
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 49 to 148, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

kEEEERFRAT 47



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BPERESERHAAREANE LS
SOEBIEAEY - BEEAERRAET
BHERE BRBRATER - HAEE
RHEMBHRERE T A EMEARR
R -

BRS RYITIE 7 A EUR B8 B # R A
HEERBBEENNERRE - TETEN
R FBURRZEIEN B I E - BREFABER
BFHERMEY M BRI FEERER
PR R - E GRS RRE - ZBE
ZREZARARRREET A F it 5 8H Y
BHMREENARIES - URERRE
ENERRERF  BYFHHARNRIE
FINMEBEXRER - ERTEEFEES
Az Bt BENEEERAEHNE
FHEFTNEEY  URFHERBRRNE
BEHHmAK

HFEE  KFMESHNERERERRR
NEZHHEMANELERIEMAER -

=R

HMRD  ZEGEVBRRCREDT B
BHBELENEEMAFHRR BHEAF
X BEEER-ZEEAFFTZA=1+—H
MMHERREE BEXREBEZALFEN
FMERBRERE  YERBEEB(XARK
P EREZ RimH o

BORUKEGTMEHAT
BIREEEET

58 —E-ZF=-A+tH

48  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2010
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MR-ZZENE+=-A=+—H Asat31December2009

e ¥
Consolidated Company
Wi —BEAE ZTENFE ZEZNF ZEINF
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
FER TR TR TEx
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
HELR Lt E AR Leasehold land and land use rights 6 53,230 55,521 - -
I3 - MR RE Property, plant and equipment 7 601,120 662,000 - -
B EE Intangible assets 8 221,425 245,190 - -
RBAE 2 RE Investments in subsidiaries 9 - - 1,371,439 1,356,152
REE N 2R Interests in associates 10 27,044 23,851 - -
RLEFEHERE Deferred income tax assets 19 17,431 6,890 - -
AHESRHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 11 500 6,370 = -
HtEWIRR: Other receivables 14 - 8,417 - -
920,750 1,008,239 1,371,439 1,356,152
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 12 467,693 547 674 - -
EWEZREIRZE Trade and bills receivable 13 540,368 769,350 - -
e BATEREM Deposits, prepayments and
FEUTIRER other receivables 14 58,536 88,633 680 24
FEHREB=(1F 2 Bank deposits with initial terms of
RITER over three months 15 24,572 - = -
HERHEZEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 649,493 363,272 180 42,578
1,740,662 1,768,929 860 42,602
RBEE Current liabilities
ENEZREIRZE Trade and bills payable 16 269,062 386,627 - -
FESTIR T R E AL (IR =X Accruals and other payables 17 167,807 188,449 7,870 2,314
HHfEHas Current income tax liabilities 66,645 55,861 - -
BE Borrowings 18 68,160 102,026 - -
B A RFE Amounts due to subsidiaries 31 - - 195 10,481
571,674 732,963 8,065 12,795
RBEE/(BE)3E Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,168,988 1,035,966 (7,205) 29,807
BEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,089,738 2,044,205 1,364,234 1,385,959
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
lErE Borrowings 18 - 11,300 - -
BEREHERE Deferred income tax liabilities 19 2,095 3,711 - -
2,095 15,011 - -
BEE Net assets 2,087,643 2,029,194 1,364,234 1,385,959

MRz —8o -

ZEBNFFH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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e b NG|
Consolidated Company
.  —BEAFE ZFEZN\F ZBThE "FIN\F
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
T TR TR TET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Equity
ARFREREA Capital and reserves attributable to
EEERKFHE equity holders of the Company
R Share capital 20 126,840 126,840 126,840 126,840
ikt Reserves 21 1,729,632 | 1,658,152 | 1,237,394 | 1,259,119
1,856,472 | 1784992 | 1,364,234 | 1,385,959
PURRER Minority interest 231,171 244,202 - -
R Total equity 2,087,643 | 2,029,194 1,364,234 1,385,959

MBI Bz — 2D o

statements.

LI Kwok Tung Roy
ZER
Director

EF
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LAI Ching Ping
RET

Director

EF

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
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FIEE —EThE ZEENFE
Note 2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
&= Revenue 5 2,888,002 | 3,487,342
SHEMA Cost of sales 22 (2,096,090)| (2,500,945)
EF Gross profit 791,912 986,397
HER D HRA Selling and distribution costs 22 (259,739) (360,959)
—BRITBHAX General and administrative expenses 22 (400,478) (551,441)
HibUh A R WS Other income and gains 1,513 1,450
R RA Operating profit 133,208 75,447
REEWA Finance income 24 6,044 12,350
BhE R AN Finance costs 24 (4,583) (5,697)
BEUA — FEEE Finance income — net 1,461 6,653
FEEEE N TSR (518) Share of profits/(losses) of associates 10 2,915 (2,884)
BRETSBLATER Profit before income tax 137,584 79,216
FrEHB X Income tax expense 25 (30,569) (52,442)
FEZRA Profit for the year 107,015 26,774
BT AL Attributable to:
RATREFEBA Equity holders of the Company 121,539 33,325
DHR RS Minority interest (14,524) (6,551)
107,015 26,774
EAATREEZEEA Earnings per share for profit attributable
EhREERFZ to the equity holders of the Company
BRER during the year
(AR ALED) (expressed in HK cents per share)
- B - basic 26 9.6 2.6
- s ~ diluted 26 9.6 2.6
BRE Dividends 27 50,736 41,857

MY BR Rz — 2D o

ZEBNFFH

The accompanying notes are an

statements.

integral part of these financial
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FieE —EEAFE —ZTTN\F
Note 2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERF Profit for the year 107,015 26,774
Hih 2 E R Other comprehensive income
FE(EEE N T H Aot Share of other comprehensive income
2HEINEG of associates 21 278 1,551
EMBEERE Currency translation differences 1,592 35,010
FHEME A AR Change in estimated consideration receivable
WD SR RiER from minority interests in relation to disposal
HstREZE of interest in a subsidiary 14 (8,901) (17,492)
FEXEKZEE Total comprehensive income for the year 99,984 45,843
AT ATEEZEKE Total comprehensive income
e attributable to:
RATBEZEEA Equity holders of the Company 113,015 45,563
DI RER Minority interest (13,031) 280
99,984 45,843

BRI B Rz — 2D ©

52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

KARRESE AER
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
SHRR
R 4 aEs
Share i @t Minority Total
capital  Reserves Total interest equity
(Ht&E20) (H&k21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZBENE-A-AMES Balance at 1 January 2008 126,840 1,686,336 1,813,176 87,922 1,901,098
2EKE Comprehensive income
EEREA/(58) Profit/(loss) for the year - 33,325 33,325 (6,551 26,774
Hitr2E Other comprehensive income
ERBEEE Currency translation differences - 28,179 28,179 6,831 35,010
FEENBAFER Change in estimated consideration
RUBLERE receivable from minority interests
T2 fhat in relation to disposal of interest
REZD in a subsidiary - (17,492) (17,492) - (17,492)
EhEE A REb2AKR Share of other comprehensive income
of associates - 1,551 1,551 - 1,551
Hit2EhEEE Total other comprehensive income - 12,238 12,238 6,331 19,069
2HENEAE Total comprehensive income - 45,563 45,563 280 45,843
HBREBARS Transactions with owners
L — & 2 R (MEE9(0) Establishment of a subsidiary (Note 9(0)) - - - 156,000 156,000
BT El Share option scheme
— RIS EE (Hz£20) - value of services (Note 20) - 2,357 2,357 - 2,357
2RRE Dividend paid
-ZEELERY - 2007 final - (44,394) (44,394) - (44,394)
-Z2E\FHH - 2008 interim - (31,710) (31,710) - (31,710)
BEEARZBE Total transactions with owners - (73,747) (73,747) 156,000 82,253
R-ZEENE+-A=t—-AMN%E Balance at 31 December 2008 126,840 1,658,152 1,784,992 244,202 2,029,194

PYRERB R R — 2B ©

statements.

ZEBNFFH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
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EARRESE AER
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
SERR
R G 4 aEs
Share i @t Minority Total
capital  Reserves Total interest equity
(Ht&F20) (HEE21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
FAT FAr FAr FAT FAn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZNE- A - BN Balance at 1 January 2009 126,840 1,658,152 1,784,992 244202 2,029,194
2HMkEE Comprehensive income
FERR/(B8) Profit/(loss) for the year - 121,539 121,539 (14,524 107,015
Hitr2E K Other comprehensive income
ERREER Currency translation differences - 99 99 1,493 1,592
HLENBLAER Change in estimated consideration
RUDOERE receivable from minority interests
2 fhat in relation to disposal of interest
REZD in a subsidiary - (8,901) (8,901) - (8,901)
N Share of other comprehensive income
Hth2mEkE of associates - 278 278 - 278
Hitt2EWHAR Total other comprehensive income - (8,524) (8,524) 1,493 (7,031)
2HENEAE Total comprehensive income - 113,015 113,015 (13,031 99,984
REBARS Transactions with owners
BT El Share option scheme
- R%EE (KEE20) - value of services (Note 20) - 322 322 - 322
ERE Dividend paid
- BT\ EXH - 2008 final - (10,147)  (10,147) - (10,147)
- ZETHERY - 2009 interim - (31,710) (31,710) - (31,710)
HEBARZEE Total transactions with owners - (41,535) (41,535) - (41,535)
R-BZNE+-A=1+—AMHEE Balance at 31 December 2009 126840 1,720,632 1,856,472 231,171 2,087,643

PR SRR — 2B ©

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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ihEsd “EENE —ZZENF
Note 2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
REXKRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
KEBRE Cash generated from operations 28(a) 456,143 134,555
TATFIE Interest paid (4,583) (5,612)
EREBRER Hong Kong profits tax paid (24,336) (40,311)
EPERECEMESH Mainland China enterprise income tax paid (7,073) (23,251)
2AIBINTEH Overseas income tax paid (12) (10)
REEBMBRS TR Net cash generated from operating activities 420,139 65,371
RETHRESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BUFIE Interest received 4,478 8,901
BERS TR+ tE A Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights - (1,986)
BEYE - HeEERXE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (41,043) (211,407)
BERZR Purchase of trademarks 9(b) - (62,400)
HERE L T i F AR Proceeds from disposal of leasehold land
P8 and land use rights 28(b) 1,221 -
HEM - 1%5%& Proceeds from disposal of property,
RS RIE plant and equipment 28(b) 3,049 2,182
HEMBARER Proceeds from disposal of interest
P8R8 in a subsidiary 9,307 10,422
REHREB=A= New bank deposits with initial terms of over
HRITED three months (24,572) -
RETEBERESFE Net cash used in investing activities (47,560)| (254,288)
RETEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BEBRIE Proceeds from borrowings 41,640 73,450
BEEE Repayments of borrowings (87,366) (41,975)
EfRE Dividends paid (41,857) (76,104)
RUE BN FTHE Net cash used in financing
R FEE activities (87,583) (44,629)
ReRESEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
®hn, (i) cash equivalents 284,996 (233,546)
FNREeRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 363,272 580,280
HeEkBeEEYEL K Exchange gains on cash and
cash equivalents 1,225 16,538
FREASRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 15 649,493 363,272

BRI Rz — 2D o

ZEBNFFH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

General information

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are engaged in the manufacturing and
selling of garment products, including sportswear, active and outer
wear, and related accessories. Sales are primarily under Original
Equipment Manufacturing (“OEM”) arrangements to customers in
Europe, North America and Mainland China, and under distribution
and retail modes in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Its production
bases are primarily located in Mainland China. Details of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 9 to these
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap.22, (Law 3 of 1961, as combined and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and have been
approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on 17
March 2010.

Summary of significant accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated
and the Company’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation

ZERAVBBRDREE BT
MAg(EBEMAE ) EME
BRUBHELN(EBYBRE
R RS - WIRRE R RAER
ERE - DRI HEEERERE
M EGFHLIER -

RENERBYBRE LN
BRABAETERSMGE T
AEEERRAASESTBRA
RHEREME - REVBERD
BREBEAGRERM  RFEEE
RERRMATHIIEMFEARE -

T HURTRT SRS RT L R R R 2 &
ARARE-—ZENFE-A—HMA
M e HEEY  BEAEEA
8 :

o FHBETHERIE1REER)
[ E|MERMEM] - KIBRT2E
BIZIEREREEREIWA
KBISREE (B FAR &R
BE)  WERSFEHERE
RSy REREEZEY
REAEWRZERFIMZS]
It AEEREHEEEERS
BH2INGEEEEHR
W MARFRERERZEE
AREEEHERERAZS -
LEBERTREERZS - U
BREMBRTER - HREFTHBER
SEEHZIITEBRTE -
MR EZREBA -

ZEBNFFH

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The following new or revised standards and amendments
to standards are effective for the Group’s accounting period
commencing 1 January 2009 and are relevant to the Group:

e HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial statements’.
The revised standard prohibits the presentation of
items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner
changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement
of comprehensive income. As a result the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all
owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes
in equity are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Comparative information has
been re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the
revised standard. Since the change in accounting policy
only impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on
earnings per share.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’. The revised
standard requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) as
part of the cost of that asset. The option of immediately
expensing those borrowing costs has been removed.
This amendment has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy
on borrowing costs has complied with the revised
requirements.

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’.
The amendment deals with vesting conditions and
cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions are
service conditions and performance conditions only.
Other features of a share-based payment are not vesting
conditions. As such these features would need to be
included in the grant date fair value for transactions with
employees and others providing similar services, that is,
these features would not impact the number of awards
expected to vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant
date. All cancellations, whether by the entity or by other
parties, should receive the same accounting treatment.
The amendment to HKFRS 2 has no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments —
disclosures’. The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only results
in additional disclosures, there is no impact on earnings
per share.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’. HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14, ‘Segment reporting’. It requires a ‘management
approach’ under which segment information is presented
on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group has applied HKFRS 8 from 1
January 2009 with no impact on the number of reportable
segments and the manner in which the segments are
reported.

Goodwill is allocated by management to groups of cash-
generating units at a segment level.

The first improvements to HKFRSs issued in October 2008
by HKICPA have no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The following new or revised standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January
2009 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010). The amendment provides clarification
that the potential settlement of a liability by the issue of
equity is not relevant to its classification as current or non-
current. By amending the definition of current liability,
the amendment permits a liability to be classified as non-
current (provided that the entity has an unconditional
right to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other
assets for at least 12 months after the accounting period)
notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required
by the counterparty to settle in shares at any time. The
Group will apply HKAS 1 (Amendment) from 1 January
2010. It is not expected to have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendment), ‘Statement of cash flows’ (effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010). Only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset are eligible
for classification as investing activities. The Group will
apply HKAS 7 (Amendment) from 1 January 2010.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010). The amendment
removes the specific guidance on the classification of
long-term leases of land as operating leases. When
classifying land leases, the general principles applicable
to the classification of leases should be applied. The
classification of land leases has to be reassessed on
adoption of the amendment on the basis of information
existing at inception of the leases. The Group will apply
HKAS 17 (Amendment) from 1 January 2010.

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial
statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009). The revised standard requires the
effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests
to be recorded in equity if there is no change in control
(“economic entity model”) and these transactions will no
longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control over a previous
subsidiary is lost, any remaining interest in the entity is re-
measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement. The Group will apply HKAS
27 (Revised) prospectively to transactions with minority
interests from 1 January 2010.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’ (effective
from or after 1 January 2010). This clarifies that the largest
unit permitted for the goodwill impairment test is the lowest
level of operating segment before any aggregation as
defined in HKFRS 8. The amendment does not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group’s existing accounting policy on goodwill
allocation complies with the amended requirements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’ (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009).
The Group will apply HKAS 38 (Amendment) from the
date HKFRS 3 (Revised) is adopted (see below). The
amendment clarifies guidance in measuring the fair value
of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination
and it permits the grouping of intangible assets as a single
asset if each asset has similar useful economic lives. The
Group will apply HKAS 38 (Amendment) from 1 January
2010.

HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2010). Loan prepayment penalties are
treated as closely related embedded derivatives, only if
the penalties are payments that compensate the lender
for loss of interest by reducing the economic loss from
reinvestment risk. In addition, the scope exemption to
business combination contracts only applies to forward
contracts that are firmly committed to be completed
between the acquirer and a selling shareholder to buy
or sell an acquiree in a business combination at a future
acquisition date. Therefore option contracts are not in
this scope exemption. This amendment also clarifies
that in a cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction that a
reclassification of the gains or losses on the hedged item
from equity to profit or loss is made during the period the
hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss. The Group
will apply HKAS 39 (Amendment) from 1 January 2010.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments), ‘Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010). In addition to
incorporating HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2’, and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, 'HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share
transactions’, the amendments expand on the guidance
in HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 to address the classification of group
arrangements that were not covered by the interpretation.
The new guidance is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’ (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The
revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method
to business combinations, with some significant changes.
For example, all payments to purchase a business are
to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt subsequently
re-measured through the income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. When a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquirer should
remeasure its previously held interest in the acquiree at its
fair value at the date of control is obtained, recognising a
gain/loss in the income statement. All acquisition-related
costs should be expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS 3
(Revised) prospectively to all business combinations from
1 January 2010.

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Measurement of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale’
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009). The amendment provides clarification that HKFRS 5
specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations. It also clarifies that the general
requirement of HKAS 1 still apply, particularly paragraph
15 (to achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph 125
(sources of estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1. The Group
will apply HKFRS 5 (Amendment) from 1 January 2010. It
is not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 8 (Amendment), ‘Operating segments’ (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010). Disclosure
of information about total assets and liabilities for each
reportable segment is required only if such amounts are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Group will apply HKFRS 8 (Amendment) from 1
January 2010.

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013). Financial assets are
required to be classified into two measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value, and
those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost.
The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the instrument. The standard
is to be applied retrospectively and allows exemptions for
restating comparatives for early adoption before 1 January
2012. Management is considering the adoption date of
this new standard.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 (Amendment), ‘Reassessment of
embedded derivatives’ (effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009). This amendment aligns the scope
of HK(IFRIC) 9 to the scope of HKFRS 3 (Revised): the
interpretation does not apply to embedded derivatives in
contracts acquired in a business combination, a common
control combination or the formation of a joint venture. The
Group will apply HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 (Amendment) from 1
January 2010.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009). This interpretation provides guidance
on accounting for arrangements whereby an entity
distributes non-cash assets (or with a cash alternative)
to shareholders either as a distribution of reserves or as
dividends. HKFRS 5 has also been amended to require
that assets are classified as held for distribution only when
they are available for distribution in their present condition
and the distribution is highly probable. The Group will apply
HK(FRIC) — Int 17 from 1 January 2010. It is not expected
to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
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The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial statements
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. For purchases of assets or of interests
in subsidiaries from minority interests, the difference
between the consideration paid and the relevant share of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary acquired
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
minority interests are also recorded in equity. For disposals
to minority interests, differences between the consideration
and the relevant share of minority interests are also
recorded in equity.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition, net of
any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Jointly controlled entity is an entity where the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which
is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.
Investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and is initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity includes goodwill identified on acquisition,
net of any accumulated impairment loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entity (Continued)

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entity’s
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled
entity, including any unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly
controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the jointly controlled
entity have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in jointly controlled entity are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Committee comprising executive directors of the Company.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars,
the Company’s presentation currency.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
such as equities classified as available-for-sale are
included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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(¢) Group companies (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress represents buildings and leasehold
improvements in which construction work has not been
completed and plant, machinery and equipment pending
installation. It is carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment
losses. On completion, construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress until it is
completed and available for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not depreciated.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvements

10 to 50 years
3 to 10 years or over the lease
terms, whichever is shorter

5to 10 years
3to 10 years
5to 10 years

— Plant and machinery
— Furniture and equipment
— Motor vehicles and yacht

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
income statement.

2.6 Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land
use rights are accounted for as operating leases. They are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the periods of the lease, or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement.

2.7 Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates is included in investments in
associates. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(@)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGU”)
for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those CGU or groups of CGU that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

Licence rights

Licence rights are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. They are initially measured as the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire the licence at the time
of the acquisition. The consideration given represents
the minimum contractual obligation at the time of the
acquisition.

Licence rights are amortised over the licence periods on a
basis that reflects the pattern in which the licence’s future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
Group.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical
cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licences over their estimated useful lives
of 25 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair value attributable
to customer base or existing contractual bids with customers
taken over in connection with business combinations. The
amount is amortised over their estimated useful lives of five
years.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

associates and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, and are tested at least annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Assets that are subject to depreciation and
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or
associates is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary or associate in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.9 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except that those with maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprised trade and other receivables, bank deposits
with initial terms of over three months, and cash and cash
equivalents in the balance sheet.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale
are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised in profit or
loss; translation differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

When financial assets classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as ‘gains and
losses from financial assets’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial assets are stated at fair values. If the market for a
financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the
Group established fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

e  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

e A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

e The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

e |t becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

e The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

e (Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

() adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that

correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement.

The Group assesses at the each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

2 EESTTHEBE@)
212178

FERRANAERFERE TN
BIEE DR o RAZINEF AT
B RRmRERRNEABER
MR BEATL - HEERAR
HEAEEMAX (REBEFEERK
BEN)  METBEERKAE - A&
BFEDREREBNGTEE
HEABBEN T EREEMSETE -

213 BN & 5 iR B H o FE LR K

BHREZRAR/EREEBBRES
pEHERIMEAREERE
F 25008 - fi B E 2 iR R 2t
FEWIR R FE R AT A — F iz UK
(BfEER - AIEXBERE
EREH)  UIDBERARBEE - fid
REN—FHZ2AUEK - BILZER
BEEZS -

FE & 5 R 50 K% H At FE W bR SR & 7
BERAVEAR  HRERBKRF
BOERESHM AL NERBERE
AR e

QUURERBEEEEY

RERREEBENEEFERER
FEHMRAS=(EAHUATHRITE
HIERK e

21518 2%

HERIMERA o

BATH RS A B AR AR
BN - FERERE T LA SRR RV HIBR
HEETIMR ©

216 BT E H iR

BNESRRR/EEEEBBESD
BHEERERRIRE 2IRE
o MENERRRTR—FHZ
REH (HMHEEER - BIEXS
ERFEERY) A EARBE
& o IR —FR2ZAEE - B
DFRBE/ERY -

BN EZRARDE D FEANR -
HERBERERF SR RBHER A

8-

ZEBNFFH

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.15Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries/places where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered trust
funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

e excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of its subsidiaries is treated
as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary, with a corresponding
credit to equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. It recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal or; providing termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have
been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Subcontracting income
Subcontracting income is recognised when subcontracting
services are provided.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.22Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

2.24 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s equity holders are
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s equity holders.

3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and, where considered necessary, seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group has not used derivative financial
instruments to hedge its risk exposures on changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
the Chinese Renminbi and United States Dollars. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, and net investments in
foreign operations.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, if Chinese Renminbi had
strengthened/weakened by 1% (2008: 6%) against the
Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year and equity holders’ equity would have
been approximately HK$1,070,000 (2008: HK$1,939,000)
higher/lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of Chinese Renminbi denominated
cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables.

The foreign currency exchange exposure on assets
and liabilities denominated in United States Dollars
is considered to be minimal as Hong Kong Dollars is
currently pegged to United States Dollars.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits
with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables and committed
transactions.

Under the ongoing global financial crisis, debtors of the
Group may be affected by the unfavourable economic
conditions and the lower liquidity situation which could in
turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed to the
Group. Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may
also have an impact on management’s cash flow forecasts
and assessment of the impairment of receivables. To
the extent that information is available, management has
properly reflected updated estimates of expected future
cash flows in their impairment assessments.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
It performs periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its
customers.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers having an
appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers
credit terms ranging from 30 to 120 days. Most of the
Group’s sales are on open account, while sales made to a
small number of customers are covered by letters of credit
issued by banks or settled by documents against payment
issued by banks.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s trade receivables
due from one group of customers (2008: one group of
customers) represent approximately 72% (2008: 54%) of
its total trade receivables from third parties (Note 13). The
Group has no other significant concentrations of credit
risk.

The Group has policies to place deposits and cash and
cash equivalents only with major financial institutions. As
at 31 December 2009, bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months of approximately HK$23,436,000 (2008:
Nil) and cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$403,994,000 (2008: HK$124,963,000) are covered by
the bank deposit guarantee scheme of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn borrowing facility
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows. Surplus cash held by Group entities over and
above balances required for working capital management
is invested in interest-bearing bank accounts and term
deposits with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to
provide sufficient head-room as determined by the above-
mentioned forecasts.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—ZmE —ERF
DPRA—F Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and &5t
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
FERT FTEx FExT FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wE Consolidated
R-EZhE At 31 December 2009
t=A=t-8
EERFEFHE  Borrowings and interest payment 70,817 - - 70,817
FENE SIER R ZE Trade and bills payable 269,062 - - 269,062
FESTIRF & Accruals and
Hith FE (TR X other payables 167,807 - - 167,807
507,686 - - 507,686
R-ZZBENE At 31 December 2008
+=HA=+—-H
BERAMNEFE Borrowings and interest payment 104,281 618 12,266 117,165
EAESERRERE Trade and bills payable 386,627 - - 386,627
FESTIRF & Accruals and
Ht (IR other payables 188,449 - - 188,449
679,357 618 12,266 692,241

R-ZZNER-ZFTNF
TZRA=1t—8  XRATNFFK
EERABEYR—FREE
BRSNS HIREALR - |
EARMENFELRERKX o

86  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, all financial liabilities
of the Company are due within one year and equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As at 31 December 2009, except for the bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months of
HK$24,572,000 (2008: Nil) and short-term bank deposits
of HK$625,959,000 (2008: HK$174,021,000) carried
weighted average interest rates of 0.9% per annum and
0.5% per annum, respectively (2008: 1.0% per annum),
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing assets.
Majority of these balances are at floating rates.

Except for the borrowings of HK$68,160,000 as at 31
December 2009 (2008: HK$113,326,000), the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing liabilities.

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest rates
had been increased/decreased by one percentage-point
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
net profit would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$5,824,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009
(2008: HK$607,000). The fluctuation is attributable to
interest income from bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months and short-term bank deposits, and
interest expense on bank borrowings.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the Company’s shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group was in a net cash position
(total borrowings were less than cash and cash equivalents).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as total borrowings divided by total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were as
follows:

—EENE —EINF
2009 2008
FHT Tz

HK$’000 HK$'000

BB % (FIFE18)
FER AR Total equity
BEEEE Gearing ratio

Total borrowings (Note 18) 68,160 113,326

2,087,643 | 2,029,194

3% 6%

e EEELRBMERAMNE
BIRTIEERH -

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The decrease in the gearing ratio above resulted primarily from
the repayment of bank borrowings.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment
to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the
balance sheet at fair value, this requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

(i) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

(i) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (for example, as
prices) or indirectly (for example, derived from prices).

(i) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data.

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets (Note 11) and
the receivable from disposal of interest in a subsidiary (Note 14)
were measured at fair values according to Level 3 under the
hierarchy.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets was
determined by using “share of net asset” approach which
was based on the unaudited financial position of the investee
company as at 31 December 2009 with a discount for
non-controlling interests according to the market practice.
Management has adopted this valuation technique, instead of
using enterprise value calculation based on earnings before
interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortisation as in last
year.

The fair value of the receivable from disposal of interest in a
subsidiary was determined by the estimated future revenues
of the subsidiary for the year ending 31 December 2010
according to financial budgets approved by management.
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3 SRIEREEE) 3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 D EMGE ) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
TEREINHEE-_ZESHAE+=A The following table presents the changes in the carrying
=S+-HLEEE=RITE>% amounts of Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
g December 2009:

HE-R

AHHE MEARE
CREE REREBIER
Available-  Receivable
for-sale from disposal

financial of interest in et
assets a subsidiary Total
FHET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F4) Beginning of the year 6,370 22,368 28,738
ER S Provision for impairment (5,870) - (5,870)
FIEUTA Interest income - 1,566 1,566
HEMERIE Receipts - (9,307) (9,307)
REMEERETER  Fair value losses recognised in
ZAFEEIE other comprehensive income - (8,901) (8,901)
FR End of the year 500 5,726 6,226
RiZGIEERER Change in fair value recongised in
ZENAFEEE consolidated income statement
during the year (5,870) - (5,870)
IREEREKEZERRESES The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
RBEREBEAEAFLEZEEY receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation of
2o AREELIFE - RBRAE their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
EREESHT A ETSRERT purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
B EARREHNREREMMETS cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
REENATE - to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts are determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset value may
not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group’s financial position and results of operations. If there is
a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the income statement.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values (if applicable) and consequently
related depreciation/amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions, or based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations according to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
intangible assets. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, and it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives;
and actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and residual values and therefore depreciation/
amortisation expense in future periods.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units (“CGU”) have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
(Note 8).

No impairment was recognised against the goodwill
being allocated to the sportswear distribution business
in Mainland China (included in the distribution and retail
segment) during the year ended 31 December 2009.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for this CGU had been five percentage-points
lower than management’s estimates at 31 December
2009 (that is, 35% instead of 40%), and the estimated
cost of capital used in determining the pre-tax discount
rate for the CGU had been three percentage-points higher
than management’s estimates (that is, 12% instead of 9%),
still no impairment against goodwill would be recognised
by the Group.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

(i) Sportswear distribution and retail business in Mainland
China
An impairment charge of HK$15,050,000 was recognised
in the sportswear distribution and retail business in
Mainland China (included in the distribution and retail
segment) during the year ended 31 December 2009,
resulting in the carrying amount of the goodwill being fully
impaired.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for the CGU had been five percentage-points
higher than management’s estimates at 31 December
2009 (that is, 47% instead of 42%), and the estimated
cost of capital used in determining the pre-tax discount
rate for the CGU had been three percentage-points lower
than management’s estimates (that is, 6% instead of 9%),
there would be no reversal to the impairment provision.

Estimated impairment of trademarks
No impairment was charged against the trademarks during the
year ended 31 December 2009.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for the trademarks had been five percentage-points
lower than management’s estimates at 31 December 2009 (that
is, 35% instead of 40%), no impairment against the trademarks
would be recognised by the Group. In addition, if the estimated
cost of capital used in determining the pre-tax discount rate
for the trademarks had been three percentage-points higher
than management’s estimates (that is, 12% instead of 9%),
the Group would have recognised a further impairment of
trademarks of HK$60,779,000.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on current market conditions and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

U]

(9)

Trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of customers and
other debtors and current market conditions, and requires the
use of judgements and estimates. Management reassesses
the provision at each balance sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current income tax
and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management expects it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilise the
temporary differences or tax losses. Management reassesses
its expectation at each balance sheet date.
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5 Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Committee comprising the executive directors of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Executive Committee reviews
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Executive Committee reviews the performance of the
Group mainly from a business operation perspective. The
Group is organised into two main business segments, namely (i)
Manufacturing, and (ii) Distribution and Retail. The Manufacturing
segment represents manufacturing of sportswear and active and
outer wear, primarily under OEM arrangements to customers mainly
in Europe, North America and Mainland China. The Distribution and
Retail segment represents the distribution and retail of ‘Umbro’ and
‘Diadora’ branded sportswear, footwear, accessories and sport
equipment in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Executive Committee assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of operating results
of each segment, which excludes the effects of non-recurring
earnings and expenditures and finance income and finance costs in
the result for each operating segment. Other information provided
to the Executive Committee is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2009 are as
follows:

DEREE
4% Distribution xoE mEt
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total

TET TR TERr TEr
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000

DR N 2 Total segment revenue 2,387,575 536,501 - 2,924,076
2 ER R Inter-segment revenue (36,074) - - (36,074)
Wit Revenue 2,351,501 536,501 - 2,888,002
ERR (EE) Operating profit (loss)/

DEBELE segment results 240,932 (107,402) (322) 133,208
RLE WA Finance income 6,044
A& A Finance costs (4,583)
FEAR S A B R Share of profits of associates 2,915 - - 2,915
MRS B AT ER Profit before income tax 137,584
R8RS Income tax expense (30,569)
FEEF Profit for the year 107,015

“ETAFFR
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TEHEE (&) 5 Segmental information (Continued)
—I—)\ﬁ?AEmﬁE’JHﬁg/\MﬁIﬁ BWTF : Other segment items included in the consolidated income
statement are as follows:
PHEREE
47 Distribution R0 EE
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total
FER FTET TET TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HE+HR Amortisation of leasehold
T b fsE AR SR land and land use rights 1,241 = = 1,241
M - BEBER Depreciation of property,
RIEITE plant and equipment 77,363 27,168 - 104,531
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible
assets - 8,855 - 8,855
B EERE Impairment of intangible
assets - 15,050 - 15,050
e Impairment of available-for-
SRIEERE sale financial assets 5,870 - - 5,870
GFERE-F8 Impairment of inventories, net 963 (524) = 439
FEWOIR FRRE — F 4R Impairment of receivables, net 9,451 1,832 - 11,283

BECZZ)/\F+ZA=+t—-HLEFE

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as

DEFEBZWT ¢ follows:
4£%&  Distribution KA #at
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
FTExT FTExT FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
D ERLAUN = Total segment revenue 2,834,124 695,613 - 3,529,737
7o EBE Inter-segment revenue (42,395) - - (42,395)
g Revenue 2,791,729 695,613 - 3,487,342

TEER (518), Operating profit (loss)/

DEBFELE segment results 158,929 (81,125) (2,357) 75,447
FE WA Finance income 12,350
BE A Finance costs (5,697)
FE(REE N BB 1R Share of losses of associates (2,884) (2,884)
FRETSBLAT R R Profit before income tax 79,216
8B Income tax expense (52,442)
FERF Profit for the year

26,774

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009




=1 Z N\, H I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_TZhF+=-A=+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

5 2EER @) 5
HABABRENEMHBERNOT :

Segmental information (Continued)
Other segment items included in the consolidated income
statement are as follows:

4£FE  Distribution A st
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
FExT FExT FHExT FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HELHE Amortisation of leasehold

T i PR g land and land use rights 1,170 - - 1,170
L/ER 5 Depreciation of property,

RIBITE plant and equipment 68,545 23,926 - 92,471
By EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets - 7,133 - 7,133
M - HEBER Impairment of property, plant

RIBRE and equipment 17,960 - - 17,960
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets - 25,479 - 25,479
e Impairment of available-for-

CREERE sale financial assets 26,000 - - 26,000
FERE-F5E Impairment of inventories, net 12,699 9,377 - 22,076
PR FURE — B4 Impairment of receivables, net 20,196 19,960 - 40,156

DEHERZNEREEET ARHEZ
IRFREST o RDEAAIE QA ©

IHEETEEFEHEI MR T HER
R W13 HERRE  BREE -8
BEQNRAZRE - AHHEZERE
E7FE BRESIKRN FREKHM
BWR - RERBESEEBYWURETER
HIRBB=EA ZRITHFR - RDEE
ETEEEESFEEARCRERRS
ZEY  TRERERELFRSHRE
Eo

ITHEETEERELLERE RO EE
BERRRELEMSHABERNEME
BEIE -

EXMAXaEEEL R L hERE
Y% - HERRE  THEEZERE
EUREFLEENTE  MEFLEEN
NEBEEBREBAHNKBEEN

NE °

ZEBNFFH

Inter-segment transactions are conducted at terms mutually agreed
among group companies. Unallocated costs represent corporate
expenses.

Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold land and land
use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investments in associates, available-for-sale financial assets,
inventories, trade, bills and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months. Unallocated assets mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents held for corporate uses, tax recoverable and deferred
income tax assets.

Segment liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities mainly comprise deferred income tax liabilities and current
income tax liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold land and
land use rights, property, plant and equipment, available-for-sale
financial assets, and intangible assets, including additions resulting
from acquisitions through business combinations.
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Segmental information (Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 and capital
expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

mT
DEREE
4 & Distribution RAE et
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total
THERT TET THET THET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
=13 Assets 1,888,121 726,665 19,582 2,634,368
NS Associates 27,044 - - 27,044
HERE Total assets 1,915,165 726,665 19,582 2,661,412
BeE Total liabilities 350,392 154,637 68,740 573,769
BERRX Capital expenditure 33,033 14,764 - 47,797
R-ZEENF+-A=+—H2ZoHE The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008 and capital
EREENEEZEZALLFENEREX expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:
M
PEREE
4%  Distribution P Wt
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
TET TR TET FET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EE Assets 1,854,304 847,005 52,008 2,753,317
BERT Associates 23,851 - - 23,851
HWEE Total assets 1,878,155 847,005 52,008 2,777,168
HEE Total liabilities 445,290 243,112 59,572 747,974
EXEAX Capital expenditure 213,818 253,332 - 467,150

98  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009




‘A‘il 1ol ¥y o [ S

NO'I'ES TOTH COi\ISOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

5 o2EER @)
RIEES  REBMREIINRES 2K
BT

Segmental information (Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical

location is as follows:

—EBhEFE —EENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

g Revenue
&8 Hong Kong 139,838 153,864
BOM Europe 1,200,720 | 1,339,276
AR K B Mainland China 847,645 | 1,047,396
E3E United States of America 116,347 454,649
mEx Canada 63,622 90,210
Hb T MBI =R Other Asian countries 345,679 249,745
HAth Others 174,151 152,202
2,888,002 3,487,342

AREERIME D FRE D RS REE

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined by the

mEANEBNEE final destination of delivery of the products.
—EEZhE ZTENE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

PEWRDT Analysis of revenue by category

HEER Sales of goods 2,881,185 | 3,474,254
RIS BR%E Provision of subcontracting services 6,817 13,088
2,888,002 3,487,342

ZEHS 2 FRBDEE(ERHIAR
EEFTSBIEERRIN BN T

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets by geographical location is as follows:

—EEAFE ZEBENF

2009 2008

FAET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

&8 Hong Kong 53,038 64,221
FRE K FE Mainland China 808,202 888,175
HiE=x Other countries 41,579 42,583
902,819 994,979

ZEBNFFH
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5 oIER @) 5 Segmental information (Continued)
BE-_EEAEFE+=ZA=+—HIE For the year ended 31 December 2009, revenues of approximately
E - W##91,882,705,0008 T (=2 HK$1,882,705,000 (2008: HK$1,968,494,000) were derived from a
J\E :1,968,494,000/87C) IR B E — single group of external customers. These revenues are attributable
BRIIREE « ZZEWFETIEEEEE to the manufacturing business.

7 o

6 HETHRTHERE -GS 6 Leasehold land and land use rights - Consolidated
NEBEFFIEENIEE Lt K& 1 i Ak The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
ERFENKEEEESER ERESE represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
DM : amounts are analysed as follows:

—EEhFE —ZETENF
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEBEE In Hong Kong held on:
HENF10E505F Leases of between 10 and 50 years 13,292 13,642
TEhEAEES In Mainland China held on:
Tt A RERIBS0F Land use rights of over 50 years = 1,221
T ERENF10E505F  Land use rights of between 10 and 50 years 39,938 40,658
53,230 55,521
—EBENE —EINF
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
F4) Beginning of the year 55,521 53,086
BN EE Exchange differences 152 1,619
NE Additions - 1,986
HE Disposals (1,202) -
i Amortisation (1,241) (1,170)
F End of the year 53,230 55,521
M REREFENEEDTA—RR Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been included
THEX - in general and administrative expenses.

100 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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7 ¥ BBRIRE-HE 7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated

XA HENE GRREE  RERRE
1 g6 BEREE  Fumiture Motor  %EIR
Freehold #F Leasehold  Plantand and vehicles Construction @
land  Buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment  andyacht inprogress Total
T FEn T T Thn T T Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$:000 HK$000
RZEENE-B-B  At1January 2008
R Cost 2,700 93,106 143,653 341,867 117,379 14,690 4876 758,271
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation - (9,627) (50,124)  (102,3%) (43,101) (6,035) - (211,243
REFE Net book amount 2,700 83,479 93,529 239,511 74,278 8,655 44,876 547,028
BE-ZEN\E1ZF  Yearended
ST-ALEE 31 December 2008
ENREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 83,479 93,529 239,511 74,278 8,655 44,876 547,028
ERZE Bxchange differences - 903 4,934 5197 3,154 285 2,862 17.3%
e Additions - 2811 14,852 55,311 45,576 18,821 73970 211,407
g5 Transfers - 21452 31,853 5118 - - (58,423) -
irt3 Disposals - - (382) (456) (982) (248) (1.211) (3,339)
i Depreciation - PATT)  (18084)  (B633)  (3326)  @i7M) -4
i Impaiment - ) BT 1825) 014 - - [17.90)
ERREFE Closing net book amount 2,700 94,584 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 662,000
RZBENE At 31 December 2008
t=R=+-8
KA Cost 2,700 104,344 185,401 391,801 156,138 33,211 62,014 935,609
ZHTERHE Accumulated depreciation
and impaiment - 0760)  (B3870)  [(123578)  (75%2)  (8:869) - (7309
REFE Net book amount 2,700 94,584 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 662,000
BE-ZEAETZE  Yearended
ST-ALEE 31 December 2009
ENREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 94,584 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 662,000
EizE Bxchange differences - 152 561 629 34 3 347 2,046
RE Additions - 905 10,014 5711 10,138 1,142 19,887 47797
g Transfers - 721 46,575 387 - - (47,683) -
HE Disposals - (1,202) (477) (3,026) (1,082) (329) (76) (6,192)
i Depreciation - R791)  (4439) (68T (6529)  (3898) - (104531
ERREFE Closing net book amount 2,700 92,369 163,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 601,120
RZZENE At 31 December 2009
tZB=t-H
K& Cost 2,700 104,890 240,219 393272 164,191 33,642 34,489 973,403
SHRERFE Accumulated depreciation
and impaiment - [2521) (8454)  (58222)  (10273)  (123%2) - [BT2283)
REFE Net book amount 2,700 92,39 153,765 285,050 61457 21,290 34,489 801,120

KA U RN ERFBERE (Y
Bl
ZETAFFER

Freehold land is located in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
(“*Jordan”).

kEKREZRBEBRAT 101



e PR HRRME

BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

7 YE HKERZRE-HS5@E 7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated

(Continued)
EHRESEFREINITERXRRES Depreciation expense and impairment loss recognised in the
BT : consolidated income statement is analysed as follows:
ZEBNAE ZZENF
2009 2008
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
SHERA Cost of sales 51,418 45,509
—BERITEEX General and administrative expenses 53,113 64,922

104,531 110,431
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BEEE-&RE 8 Intangible assets — Consolidated
-4y EER%
[ BeE Licence Customer st
Trademarks Goodwill rights relationships Total
TR FET FExT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
R=ZZBZENE—-HA—H  At1January 2008
A Cost - 48,973 3,806 2,127 54,906
g5 Accumulated amortisation - - (2,315) (267) (2,582)
IREFE Net book amount - 48,973 1,491 1,860 52,324
BE-ZZN\F Year ended
+=-—B=+—HIEE 31 December 2008
FEUREEE Opening net book amount - 48,973 1,491 1,860 52,324
ERELE Exchange differences - 4,004 35 52 4,091
R (FIEE 9(b) Additions (Note 9(b)) 221,387 - - - 221,387
oK Amortisation (5,166) - (1,526) (441) (7,133)
HE Impairment - (24,008) - (1,471) (25,479)
FAREFE Closing net book amount 216,221 28,969 - - 245,190
R-ZFENE At 31 December 2008
+=ZHB=+—H
A Cost 221,387 52,977 - 2,219 276,583
ZETEERRE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (5,166) (24,008) - (2,219) (31,393)
REFE Net book amount 216,221 28,969 - - 245190
BE-ZTNE Year ended
+ZA=+—HIFE 31 December 2009
FEREFE Opening net book amount 216,221 28,969 - - 245190
E X =5 Exchange differences - 140 - - 140
i Amortisation (8,855) - - - (8,855)
R Impairment - (15,050) - - (15,050)
FARIREFE Closing net book amount 207,366 14,059 - - 221,425
RZZEZhE At 31 December 2009
+=A=t-"
A Cost 221,387 53,117 - 2,219 276,723
ZETEERRE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (14,021) (39,058) - (2,219) (55,298)
IREEE Net book amount 207,366 14,059 - - 221,425

ZEBNFFH
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W

Intangible assets — Consolidated (Continued)
Amortisation and impairment loss recognised in the consolidated
income statement is analysed as follows:

—EERFE ZTENF
2009 2008
FHET FHExT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SHE AR Cost of sales - 1,526
—RRITHEX General and administrative expenses 23,905 31,086
23,905 32,612
EEREIR : Impairment tests for goodwill:

BEIREREEK I BRUEBNE
BN AEERSELESEMN R ZF
FhE+ZA=+—H > 14,059,000
B (ZEFEZFN\HF : 13,985,000/& 7T)
HNEERIEETFEKREESERSD H
(% MEBHBERE(ZZEENF:
14,984,000 7t) Bl D ELE R Bl K
bE B EEROERTEER > BE
A EREHNBRNEZIHEEE
EXKoBNREELEBENDHIE
Al o

REeEEENUNTTRRESFEDREER
BEFELSEZEE - 2SS EEARE
EEEREDRIEREDRIERT
EEB D BIHEN T F IR = FHI8
AEMAENRARESRERA - B
EHEFAEFIRENE2RERENT
NF2F 2 EBBRIEE - BRETE
BREELEVKEEBNRIFY
BRE.

104 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according to
business segment and geographical location. As at 31 December
2009, goodwill of HK$14,059,000 (2008: HK$13,985,000) is
allocated to the sportswear distribution business in Mainland China
and a fully impaired goodwill (2008: HK$14,984,000) is allocated
to the sportswear distribution and retail business in Shanghai,
Mainland China, representing the identified groups of CGU within
the distribution and retail segment that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the acquisitions.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period for the
sportswear distribution business and a three-year period for the
sportswear distribution and retail business. Cash flows beyond the
period covered in approved budgets are extrapolated using the
key assumptions stated below. The growth rates do not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the businesses in which the
cash-generating units operate.

Annual Report 2009
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8 Intangible assets — Consolidated (Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill: (Continued)

—EBENE —ZE)N\F
2008

EBRo8H EBAR xﬁé

REE EEE

EHRDEY Sportswear EEIFRSES Sportswear

Sportswear distribution Sportswear  distribution

distribution and retail  distribution and retail

FEEER = Budgeted gross margin 40% 42% 38% 36%
AEREBHTEER Growth rate used to

HEREZIBER extrapolate cashflows
beyond the budget period 0% 0% 0% 0%
BiATARIR 2 Pre-tax discount rate 9% 9% 8% 8%

EEERBBAERRLHEATEREN

FEMEEEEERNE -

a_‘t— =
B BAEMARREFE
BROERE

24,008,00078 7T )
§ °

9 HHWEBARANWRE-FAQT 9

ZhAEF+ZA=+—HIHF
a2
EXRRESELENE
R {E15,050,0008 T (ZEEN\EF ¢
T A— MR AT

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past

performance and its expectations for market development.

FhiE

For the year ended 31 December 2009,
HK$15,050,000 (2008: HK$24,008,000) was recognised in respect
of the sportswear distribution and retail business CGU as a result of
the decrease in forecasted future profitability, which is included in
general and administrative expenses.

Investments in subsidiaries - Company

impairment of

—ETAF ZEENE
2009 2008
FHET FExT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
REFLETIRG Investment in unlisted shares, at cost

RN AR 538,341 538,341

ERHEL RS Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a))
(FFEE(@)) 833,098 817,811
1,371,439 1,356,152

ZEBNFFH
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Investments in subsidiaries — Company (Continued)
The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of which are
unlisted, as at 31 December 2009:

9 HNWEARMKRE-ADR @ 9
THAR=Z2AF+=A=+—AK
TEMBAF (K L) -

MBI E K PRI
EEERER ERTRERRAFE Interest held TRERREENY
2% Place of incorporation Particulars of issued Z—ZEHAFE ZFZN\F  Principal activities and
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2009 2008 place of operations
BEETMERAR RBRZBEB(RLBES]) - 100%% 100% 100% BERKER B
Bowker Asia Limited BRETLT Us$100 Trading of garment
British Virgin Islands products/Hong Kong
(“BVI"), limited
liability company
EEHREAOTR) PEIARE  NEBELE 419049057 100% 100%  EEBKER/FEAE
BRAHE Mainland China, US$4,199,490 Manufacturing of garment
Bowker Garment wholly foreign products/Mainland China
Accessories (Heyuan) owned enterprise
Company Limited
ERARBERBRLA BB BREEAH 10,000/ 7T 100% 100% REERREE
Bowker Garment Hong Kong, HK$10,000 BKER/ &S
Accessories limited liability Investment holding and
Company Limited company trading of garment
products/Hong Kong
ERANE(ES) REIRE  SEBELE 22,000,000 85% 85% EEAKER/PEIKE
BRAHE Mainland China, HK$22,000,000 Manufacturing of
Bowker Garment Factory wholly foreign garment products/
(Yunfu) Company Limited owned enterprise Mainland China
EEAREERA A B8 BREELT 10,0008 T SREE 100% 100% BERKER BH
Bowker Garment Hong Kong, 200,000 LHRE Trading of garment
Factory Company Limited ~ limited liability EEZTERG products/Hong Kong
company (HiaE(ce)
HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000
non-voting
deferred (Note (c))
BEOERCTR) REIRE  HNEBELE 4799772087 100% 100% 4EDERAGER/
BRAH Mainland China, HK$47,997,720 hE KR
Bowker Printing Factory wholly foreign Manufacturing of
(Heyuan) Company owned enterprise printing and
Limited embroidery products/
Mainland China

106 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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9 HHBATIWNIRE —AAQT @) 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)
AL H R iR
EEERER ERTRAZREFE Interest held TEXBREENH
Eg Place of incorporation Particulars of issued —ZZENE ZZFZFNFE  Principal activities and
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2009 2008 place of operations
BREHRECTR) REIREE - SEBELE  13682820% T 100% 100% £ERKER/TFEKE
BRAR Mainland China, US$13,682,820 Manufacturing of
Bowker Sportswear wholly foreign garment products/
(Heyuan) Company owned enterprise Mainland China
Limited
BERAIERTH(ER REIRE SNEBELE 80,000,000 100% 100%  HERKER/ TEAE
ERATE Mainland China, HK$80,000,000 Manufacturing of
Bowker Venture Garment wholly foreign garment products/
(Yunfu) Company Limited owned enterprise Mainland China
Bowker (Vietnam) Garment ~ #iE » AREFAT 15,600,0005& 7T 100% 100%  HERKER/HE
Factory Company Limited  Vietnam, limited HK$15,600,000 Manufacturing of
liability company garment products/
Vietnam
BExdm(ER)ERAR B AREELHF 1,000,000 7T 100% 100% REZRREERK
Bowker Vietnam Holding Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 Em/E8
Limited limited liability Investment holding and
company trading of garment
products/Hong Kong
BRBEENIX LN 16,000,000 7T 100% 100%  £ERKER/PEKRE
BRAH NEBELE HK$16,000,000 Manufacturing of
Bowker Yao Wa (Huizhou) ~ Mainland China, garment products/
Industry Limited wholly foreign Mainland China
owned enterprise
BERRARKECTR) REAK 120,000,000 7¢ 1% 1% EERKRER/PEKXE
BRAH NEBELE HK$120,000,000 Manufacturing of
Bowker Yee Sing Mainland China, garment products/
Garment Factory wholly foreign Mainland China
(Heyuan) Company owned enterprise
Limited
Corus Investments Limited &% » BREF AT 10,0008 7T 100% 100% MIERE/ BB
Hong Kong, HK$10,000 Property holding/
limited liability Hong Kong
company

ZEBNFFH
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9 ¥HHBATIMNIRE —AAT @) 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)
AL H K iR
EEERER ERTRAZREFE Interest held TEXBREELH
Eg Place of incorporation Particulars of issued —ZZENE ZZFFNFE  Principal activities and
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2009 2008 place of operations
BESHEERARCRY)  PEAE SEBELE AKR¥S50,000,0007T 60% 60% EEMRKERPEKXE
ERATE Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 Trading of garment
Diadora Sportswear wholly foreign products/
(Shenzhen) Limited owned enterprise Mainland China
ENZERERAR HREIREE - SEBELE  20,000,000% T 75% %% BERTERKER/
BRAH Mainland China, HK$20,000,000 EFIM%
Guangzhou Win Sports Ltd. wholly foreign Trading and retailing
owned enterprise of garment products/
Mainland China
#h(EB)BRAR & BREELH 10,0008 7 100% 100% EEBERKER/ES
Rich Form (HK) Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 Trading of garment
limited liability products/Hong Kong
company
EFTERRTEERAR HEAE . HEEELE 550,000 72.7% 72.7%  EEBKER/PEAE
Sport City Garment Mainland China, HK$550,000 Manufacturing of garment
Factory Company Limited foreign equity products/Mainland China
joint venture
EFHERLT & BRERALT 500,000 7% 75% 5% BEEBRER/ES
Sport Corners Limited Hong Kong, HK$500,000 Retailing of sportswear
limited liability products/Hong Kong
company
REBBRRRY) REIRKE  NEBELE 500000087 60% 60% EEMREM/ TEAE
BRAHF Mainland China, HK$5,000,000 Trading of garment
Team & Sports wholly foreign products/Mainland China
(Shenzhen) Ltd. owned enterprise
REFTHRAF B BRERALT 900,00038 7% 60% 60% EERKER/BE
Team & Sports Limited Hong Kong, HK$900,000 Trading of garment
limited liability products/Hong Kong
company
KE(PE)ERAR B BREALT 10,0007 100% 100% EERKER/ B
Win Hanverky Hong Kong, HK$10,000 Trading of garment
(China) Company Limited limited liability products/Hong Kong
company
108 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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9 ¥HHBATIWNIRE —AAT @) 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)
AL H R PR
EEERER ERTRAZREFE Interest held TEXBREENH
Eg Place of incorporation Particulars of issued —ZZENE ZFZFNFE  Principal activities and
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2009 2008 place of operations
XEEE(ER)ERLR BB BREALF 10,0008 T SREE 100% 100% BERKER BS
Win Hanverky Limited Hong Kong, 1,000,00058 7T Trading of garment
limited liability FREETZBERH products/Hong Kong
company (HIzE(C)
HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$1,000,000
non-voting deferred
(Note (c))
EEREARES(LE)  HEXE . HHEELE 500000087 75% %% BERZERKER/
BRAF Mainland China, HK$5,000,000 hEIARE
Win Sports Trading wholly foreign Trading and retailing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. owned enterprise of garment products/
Mainland China
XEEBRERAF (M) BFS BRETLF 182,010,000 7T 60% 60% REER /BB
Winor International Hong Kong, HK$182,010,000 Investment holding/
Company Limited (Note (b))~ limited liability Hong Kong
company
ENTEERXERAT  PEAE  HNEBELE 8629216587 100% 100%  EERKER/FEAHE
Wuzhou Bowker Mainland China, HK$86,292,165 Manufacturing of garment
Garment Company Limited  wholly foreign products/Mainland China
owned enterprise

f o RARNROBAREEESSE  Hit
B AQRREES -

#  The shares of this company are held directly by the Company; others
are held indirectly by the Company.
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9 ¥HEBATNKRE —XQF @)
G

(@)

FEUR Y8 1 B BB R 7 1 B [ AR A B
DNARHHORARE - THRA QT
BARRENSTBERE -

RZZBZENFNA  FEFEKXER
AR AT ([KE ) FiDiadora®iZ
ERRBEAE FERBMANEE
BHEET U IHE  c AREURENRE
234,000,000 7T 72 & K FE60% IR #& ©
FAEL1S 7K E 62,400,000 Tt 14 7K % -
Httpg BB O K EEZEMEADiadora
ERZNER DB K EER T 40% R FE -
Bt NREER KB EMAR R LR
MERABBERS  BREIESEH
BAER AEERHEMBRAIRELE
EMNSEHERBEREENKE
BO%MRIE o Bhoh » KEM—KKE AT
B Diadora 2N — BAIFEAWES
F@DiadoraBZM#%E T8 5 BUIR K
zFE-

RKEMA%E - BH#FZEEDiadoral
B ER & 7 221,387,0007% T (FizE
8) » WIR2EF Il Al L AR SF MY -

R R IR FIE AR 19 N0 3F FR AN SR [ P
B ZERNEERERE  BRIEEE
A 7 By £ R #8 H 100,000,000,000
T RBABEESRE  MARKKE
BEAGRBOEEERIZIEAC SR
100,000,000,00058 7t » & IR B L E
INEREWER DK ©

REBE-ZTNF+ZA=+—HILLHF
EEARRE  WEQRLEEFASHT
BEER(ZZENEFE () -

HETHBARRREEERRTEME
HASEEEERBEERNDT L EBE
DR o

110 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

9

Investments in subsidiaries — Company (Continued)
Notes:

(@)

Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by the
Company to the respective subsidiaries and are measured in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for investments in
subsidiaries.

In April 2008, the Group entered into agreements to establish Winor
International Company Limited (“Winor”) for the manufacture and sale
of products bearing the ‘Diadora’ trademarks in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau. The Group has subscribed 60% equity interest
in Winor for a cash consideration of HK$234,000,000. The other
shareholder has subscribed the remaining 40% equity interest in Winor
by assignment to it the rights to use the ‘Diadora’ trademarks, after
receiving a payment of HK$62,400,000 from Winor. In this connection,
the Group and the other shareholder of Winor have entered into a
put option and a call option agreement, under which the Group can
sell and the other shareholder can purchase the Group’s 60% equity
interest in Winor at pre-determined amounts upon occurrence of a
limited number of events. In addition, a subsidiary of Winor acquired
certain trade receivables and inventories relating to the ‘Diadora’
trademarks from a former licensee of the ‘Diadora’ trademarks.

Upon the establishment of Winor, intangible assets, representing the
Diadora trademarks, amounting to HK$221,387,000 (Note 8) have
been recognised and are to be amortised over their estimated useful
life of 25 years.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. These
shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends unless the
net profit of the relevant company exceeds HK$100,000,000,000 and
are not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed by the relevant company to
the holders of its ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort
by the management of the Group to translate their Chinese names
as they do not have official English names.
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10 REE N R 2R - S

10 Interests in associates — Consolidated

“EEAE —ZENE

2009 2008

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

F4) Beginning of the year 23,851 25,184
DL E Share of reserves 278 1,551

MEEF(EE) Share of profits/(losses) 2,915 (2,884)
F& End of the year 27,044 23,851

UTBR-—BEAE+—HA=+—A%
EEBE AR (R LEH)WFE

The following are details of the Group’s associates, all of which are
unlisted, as at 31 December 2009:

BT RE
AR L B K Interest held
EEERER ERTRBRRAFE indirectly TEEBREENHY
218 Place of incorporation Particulars of issued —ZZENE ZFZNF  Principal activities and
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2009 2008  place of operations
EIREERBEE FEIAPE - AR¥54,889,0007 30% 30%  WREEREE/
CR)BRAS NEBELE RMB54,889,000 HEI R
Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Mainland China, Fabrics dyeing and
Factory (Heyuan) wholly foreign supply/Mainland
Company Limited owned enterprise China
EEREBRAT EZE#E  ARER 6,800,000% 7T 30% 30% REZRRARDE
Fu Hsun Investment AT S$6,800,000 RitE/ &g
Company Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding
company and fabrics dyeing
and supply/Taiwan
Fu Jin Bowker BUHE BREML 2,900,000 7 30% 30% REAR A
Company Limited NG| US$2,900,000 Sourcing of fabrics/
BV, limited liability Taiwan
company

FEERLHEATDEE - AfF W&

The Group’s shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and results of

RELZWT : the associates are as follows:

—EEAFE —EENE

2009 2008

FHET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

EE Assets 40,163 48,051
=L Liabilities 13,119 24,200
g Revenue 77,803 60,593
EERN,(EE) Profits/(losses) for the year 2,915 (2,884)
ZETAFEER AEEEEBRBMRAT 11
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11 JHEESREE - FS 11 Available-for-sale financial assets - Consolidated

—E2FhEF ZTTNFE
2009 2008
FTERT TR
HK$000  HK$'000

Hn—AB—H At 1 January
NE Additions

RE Impairment
R+=—B=+—H At 31 December

6,370 -
= 32,370
(5,870) (26,000)
500 6,370

REEER — N EBEMA I L
mRT10%RE - ZARREBERE
TEERERBERAREDE - B
EEN—BHENRE - ZREUETH
B 2ERIHEESHEE -

REBE-ZZNFF+-A=+—HILEF
B BHAWBREQARRRBFEIT
Bk R{EETE5,870,00008 T (=2 ZN
£ : 26,000,000 7T ) HERNR —KR R
THEZA -

112 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The Group has a 10% equity interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in the United States of America (“USA”), which
is engaged in the design and distribution of active wear and
sportswear in the USA and is a sales agent of the Group. This
investment is denominated in United States Dollars and is classified
as available-for-sale financial assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, an impairment loss of
HK$5,870,000 (2008: HK$26,000,000) was recognised as a result
of the decrease in future profitability of the investee company and
has been included in general and administrative expenses.
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12 EE - &4 12 Inventories - Consolidated
—EEAE ZZENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEHE Raw materials 150,734 179,493
TH®E Work in progress 65,356 77,142
IR Finished goods 251,603 291,039
467,693 547,674
FERAN#2,095,651,000/8 T(ZEE The costs of inventories recognised as expense and included in
N\ 1 2,477,343,0008 T) ER & cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$2,095,651,000 (2008:
X WEFTAHERA © HK$2,477,343,000).
FEREFHENBE439,0008 T (= Net write-down of inventories amounted to approximately
ENE 22,076,000 7T)  2EF A HK$439,000 (2008: HK$22,076,000) was included in cost of sales.
BRI o
13 EWESRRREE -&FE 13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated
—EEZhE ZTENE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
W E SRR Trade receivables
—-REFE=F — from third parties 539,055 738,135
- REREER — from related parties
(M¥EE31(0) (Note 31(d)) 12,745 2,022
EWERE Bills receivable 21,631 54,211
573,431 794,368
W ORERE Less: provision for impairment (33,063) (25,018)
540,368 769,350
EWE SRR R EBIREEREEND The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable approximate
TR o their fair values.

ZEBNFFH kmREEBRBFRAT 113
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13 BEWEB SIRFIREE - &5 @) 13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated (Continued)

FEWE SRR TERAEERFEEL Majority of trade receivables are with customers having an
HHNER  REERTFEFNEEHN appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers credit
F30ZE120H o REEHEHE KB4 LL terms ranging from 30 to 120 days. Most of the Group’s sales are
STIRAET  MALEHEFHEERF on open account, while sales made to a small number of customers
FSRTRENEARZAHERITESL are covered by letters of credit issued by banks or settled by
WX EE - EIWE SR ERE documents against payment issued by banks. The ageing analysis
MINRER D AT 0T of trade and bills receivable is as follows:
ZEEAE ZEBNF
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0ZE30X 0 - 30 days 177,116 356,545
31E60X 31 -60 days 182,670 277,475
B61E90XK 61 - 90 days 166,952 72,400
91E120K 91 - 120 days 13,467 34,977
1212180K 121 -180 days 5,217 18,496
1812365k 181 — 365 days 9,947 20,158
HBiB365 K Over 365 days 18,062 14,317
573,431 794,368
FBWE SRFTBIHDRIOKX —RTE Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are generally
ERE R-ZZBEEAE+-_HA=+-— not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2009, trade
B BHBBOXERREREZE receivables of HK$985,000 (2008: HK$19,507,000) were more
U & 5 IR 7K A985,000/8 T (ZEZEN than 90 days past due but considered not to be impaired. These
F :19,507,00058T) @ MEE T EA relate to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history
WEEXCENESFER - ZSERE of default. The past due ageing analysis of these trade receivables is
SIRRHERIRER ST as follows:
ZEEAE ZEENF
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
91E120K 91 -120 days 645 10,054
1212180K 121 -180 days 179 3,090
181&E365K 181 - 365 days 159 5,531
HBiB365K Over 365 days 2 832
985 19,507

114  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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13 EWE SRR EE - FE 0@
R-EEAE+-B=+—08" B
BWELBHBREZERE FIRX
£ 33,063,000 T (ZFEZT )\ F :
25,018,0005870) ° :ZE EUNIRFREEE
FEF(BEEBRETER BN
ZEF)EH - S EUIRF AR

13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of HK$33,063,000
(2008: HK$25,018,000) were impaired and had been fully provided
for. These receivables relate to a number of customers, including
customers in unexpected difficult economic situations. The past
due ageing of these receivables is as follows:

BRI :
—ETAF ZEENE
2009 2008
FHBxT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
0E30Kk 0 - 30 days 46 317
31E60K 31 - 60 days 92 698
61E90K 61 — 90 days 48 398
IME120K 91 - 120 days 633 357
121E180K 121 - 180 days 4,397 13,648
1812 365K 181 - 365 days 9,787 6,538
HBiB365Kk Over 365 days 18,060 3,062
33,063 25,018

W E Z iR R EIER R EREZE N

Movements of provision for impairment of trade and bills receivable

T are as follows:
—ERhEFE —EENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
F10 Beginning of the year 25,018 15,687
ERZEZ Exchange differences 508 548
ERME — 5 Provision for impairment, net 9,066 17,591
F R EE E RIRAY Receivables written off during
FEURIR X the year as uncollectible (1,529) (8,808)
FR End of the year 33,063 25,018

SR EREWIR R B RS R R BB T
A—BRRATHMAX - stABRBIRENE
R BTN A W E FESMNR SR

ZEBNFFH

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in general and administrative expenses. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.
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14 %

13 B E SRR EZE - 428 @)
AEBHERESERREEUTHE

13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)
The Group’s trade and bills receivable were denominated in the

WESTE - following currencies:
—EEAEFE ZEENE
2009 2008
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Eo United States Dollars 372,161 469,361
A REE Chinese Renminbi 193,060 306,088
BT Hong Kong Dollars 8,210 18,755
Hih Others = 164
573,431 794,368

RIS BHRANEERRS LREY

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the

IRV A TE o AREE I EIEFE K fair value of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not
o hold any collateral.
€ FENREREMEIW 14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
R X
wa ¥ NN
Consolidated Company
—EEANFE —ZBENF ZEEAE ZZTENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FBT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BN HA Current
EEESSE] Tax recoverable 1,971 2,540 435 -
HE - kEEBAKR Rental, utility and
Hittize other deposits 18,272 21,214 - -
EEMYNFENIE Prepayments for
operating expenses 5,543 6,693 245 -
FEWNFENRIE Prepayments for inventories 5,450 4,111 - -
HENB N RER Receivables from disposal of
Y PE U R R (BT ) interest in a subsidiary (Note) 5,726 13,951 = -
FEUR S E IR IR EX Receivable from a sales agent - 16,535 - -
o Y B 12 E Value-added tax recoverable 10,379 20,184 - -
H b FEUIR X Other receivables 11,195 3,405 = 24
58,536 88,633 680 24
JEBNER Non-current
HENB N RER Receivable from disposal of
Y PR U R R (BT ) interest in a subsidiary (Note) = 8,417 = -
58,536 97,050 680 24

116 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009



=1 Z N\, H I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_TZhF+=-A=+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

1418€  ANREREMER
PR X (&)
e - FEAHER b RERIE R E R
WEHATEEE - REBEBRANE

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The maximum exposure

BREBA EMIEE D TE - REEL
EFBEMERR -

AR E B H BRI T S E#5)
B :

to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the items
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral.

The Group’s other receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

—EEAFE ZEENE
2009 2008
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
E$ United States Dollars 5,726 38,902
R A REE Chinese Renminbi 16,369 23,137
BT Hong Kong Dollars 7,132 2,993
Hith Others 44 _
29,271 65,032

BT - Note:

R-ZZTHEFLA AEEBZEMBQ
FTeam & Sports (BVI) Limited LB L
97,383,000 7t (AT RIEXREFITERAA
(TXRE ) 2 RRW G FURRE) HERKE
25%MHE - FEWIRFA D BRI RR A XA -
BEE-Z—ZFo

REBE-ZEZAF+-A=1+—-HLEFE "
REBEMTEAERAMBARNNERK
B -BECZ-ZFF_A=T-ALFE
B ET AR R R R D - B kb ET RSB
4>8,901,000/8 7T (ZFZ\F : 17,492,000
}g%) o KRR ELBELNBENA

ZERYIRRDHTIT

In September 2005, Team & Sports (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, disposed of a 25% equity interest in Team & Sports Limited
(“T&S”) for a consideration of approximately HK$ 97,383,000 (subject to
adjustments based on future revenues of T&S), receivable by instalments
through 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reassessed the
post disposal performance of T&S and its subsidiaries. The estimated
future revenues for the year ending 31 December 2010 were decreased
and consequently the estimated consideration receivable was reduced by
HK$8,901,000 (2008: HK$17,492,000). The loss resulting from the change
of estimated consideration receivable was charged to reserves.

An analysis of such receivable is as follows:

—EBhRFE ZBENF
2009 2008
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEBIRESR Receivable
-—FRQ — within one year 6,062 14,426
-—F#EBEFR — after one year and not later than five years - 9,637
6,062 24,063
A REREUR SRF B A Less: Unearned future interest income (336) (1,695)
FERREFCRIRE Net present value of the receivable 5,726 22,368
BiE- Analysed as —
—F R ERIRTR Amount receivable within one year 5,726 13,951
— FBEWIRR Amount receivable after one year - 8,417
5,726 22,368

ZEBNFFH
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15 EEHIRBB =@ B 2$R171F 15 Bank deposits with initial terms of over three

FBEERRESZEEY months/Cash and cash equivalents
RE NG|
Consolidated Company
—EEAE —FT/\F —FTAF —TENE
2009 2008 2009 2008

FERT FERT FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FREHRBB=EA2 Bank deposits with initial
RITIFR terms of over three months 24,572 - = -
RITRFERS Cash at bank and on hand 23,534 189,251 180 208
DHISRITIERX Short-term bank deposits 625,959 174,021 - 42,370
649,493 363,272 180 42,578
674,065 363,272 180 42,578
R-ZBEZEAF+=A=+—H F&H As at 31 December 2009, the weighted average interest rate of the
REHRBE®E =88 ZRITFRMNETF Group’s bank deposits with initial terms of over three months and
HEFELR0.9%  =ERITERMIE was 0.9% per annum. The weighted average interest rate of short-
FHENERHNEOSN(ZBEENE I F term bank deposits was approximately 0.5% per annum (2008:
FIZEA1.0%) o BHRTERNERES 1.0% per annum). The short-term bank deposits have maturities of
=EAFEUT 3 months or less at inception.
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15 RRHIREB=1EA Ziﬂ T
R BERACEEN =

15 Bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months/Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

FEHRBB=(EA 2RITFER L/{&Iﬁ
ERASEEYUATIIERE

Bank deposits with initial terms of over three months and cash and
cash equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

wa b NN

Consolidated Company
—EEAE ZEENF ZZTTAFE ZZENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
FExT FERT FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
E$ United States Dollars 406,379 87,390 - 22,365
FE AR Chinese Renminbi 241,851 225,979 - -
BT Hong Kong Dollars 23,550 47,393 180 20,213
Hith Others 2,285 2,510 - -
674,065 363,272 180 42,578

REBUPEARETHENRAHRE
B=EAZRITERUARBRERREE
BMFHRRPEARERNRT - REZSE
TREARBERRIIMNEUARSESEL
AR B ARk 3 3% P B APk R P AR AR EY S
EEFEERREMRE -

R¥kE B HNRAEEREREFRAHR
BBR=EA Ziﬁﬁﬁ AUARRERRE
ZEYHOREERS

ZEBNFFH

The Group’s bank deposits with initial terms of over three months
and cash and cash equivalents denominated in Chinese Renminbi
were deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of
Chinese Renminbi into foreign currencies and the remittance of
funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland China
Government.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date

approximates the carrying values of the bank deposits with initial
terms of over three months and the cash and cash equivalents.

kEKREZRBEBRAT 119



e MBmRAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

16 ENEZRIANEE - &8 16 Trade and bills payable - Consolidated

“EEAE ZEINE
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BB SRR Trade payables
—FE=h - to third parties 233,741 333,154
—FEBER (M3E31(d)) - to related parties (Note 31(d)) 33,147 48,999
ERERE Bills payable 2,174 4,474
269,062 386,627

BNEZRARRENRRINOT

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payable is as follows:

—EEAF ZEENE

2009 2008

FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

0ZE30Kk 0-30 days 146,687 193,756
31E60K 31 - 60 days 83,057 98,055
61ZE90K 61 - 90 days 32,005 53,521
91E120K 91 - 120 days 3,934 25,390
121E365% 121 - 365 days 1,295 9,967
#BiB365K Over 365 days 2,084 5,938
269,062 386,627

REENENSEZRRARFRBUTIE

The Group’s trade and bills payable were denominated in the

WEHE - following currencies:
—EEAF ZEENE
2009 2008
FHET FHBT
HK$°000 HK$'000
E$ United States Dollars 144,783 176,002
BT Hong Kong Dollars 78,439 91,156
REA RS Chinese Renminbi 45,840 117,975
Hih Others - 1,494
269,062 386,627
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17 FESTiRFR EL Al B iR =X

17 Accruals and other payables

wE ¥ NN
Consolidated Company
—EEAE ZEBEN\E ZEBEBEAE ZEENE
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FHBT FHET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEBRRAEFTIRRR Accrual for employment
benefit costs 85,515 86,560 4,538 680
EREEEE Royalty payable 7,421 12,544 - _
PEHEES Value added tax payable 9,831 12,940 = -
BEWEFRE Deposits received from
customers 5,581 11,266 - -
Hih & B FERTIRX Accrual for other operating
expenses 42,451 49,917 3,330 1,467
EsthiGHERE - EER Accrued marketing, advertising
SERX and promotion expenses 3,544 5,263 - -
BEYE HER Payable for purchases of
RAEM (SRR property, plant
and equipment 8,114 5,758 - -
H AR Other payables 5,350 4,201 2 167
167,807 188,449 7,870 2,314
18 HE —4&E 18 Borrowings - Consolidated
—EEhFE ZETENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BP &R Current
SHARITE R Short-term bank loans 68,160 101,700
ERBIBEDRITER Trust receipts import bank loans = 326
68,160 102,026
JEBNHA Non-current
RERITERM Non-current portion of
JERNERER 2 long-term bank loans = 11,300
EERAHE Total borrowings 68,160 113,326
—ETNEEH AEEMEBRERATE 121
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18 fEE—&HFE @) 18 Borrowings - Consolidated (Continued)

AEBERBEEEENT ¢ The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:
—EEhE —ETENEF
2009 2008
FEx FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within one year 68,160 102,026
B-ERF Between two and five years - 11,300

68,160 113,326

HMTRENFETTEXR - BEHEE
MREEEE D FERE - RZTFN
F+ZA=1—H  FEMEENLQF
{E%311,286,000/8 7T  LLTIRIERE AR
EETHFEERSS%EMMFTARER
ETINRMATTE -

R-EEAF+-A=+—H EH
$RITEFA39,760,000/8 T (ZEEN
% :101,700,00058 7T ) * HAARD BE
ReR=ZBEENE+=-A=+—-H" E
HASR1TE X 11,300,000 Jt R A= 5T U5
¥ D4R 1T & F326,000/8 TN AR A &)
Bk o

HEFEUTIEBTHE

The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings approximate
their fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. As
at 31 December 2008, the fair value of the non-current borrowings
was HK$11,286,000, which was based on the estimated cash
flows discounted using the Group’s average borrowing rate of 5.5%
per annum.

As at 31 December 2009, short-term bank loans of HK$39,760,000
(2008: HK$101,700,000) were guaranteed by the Company. As at
31 December 2008, the long-term bank loans of HK$11,300,000
and trust receipts import bank loans of HK$326,000 were also
guaranteed by the Company.

The borrowings were denominated in the following currencies:

—BBAE —BENE
2009 2008
FET  FER

HK$°000 HK$’000

FE AR Chinese Renminbi 68,160 113,000
Ep United States Dollars - 326

68,160 113,326
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18 fBE — & (@)

R-ZZBEAF+ZA=1T—-RB 4K
B K& & %28,400,0008 T (ZFEN
F 1 113,326,000 T) » HRFHE

18 Borrowings — Consolidated (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s borrowings of
HK$28,400,000 (2008: HK$113,326,000) were on floating rates.
The weighted average interest rates (per annum) at the balance

T E > REE R NMERY (F)FI= sheet date were as follows:
T
S —2TNF
2009 2008
ARE Ep ARYE Ep
RMB uss$ RMB us$
REMRITER Long-term bank loans - - 5.5% -
WHRITER Short-term bank loans 5.1% - 5.7% -
EEWIEEORITER Trust receipts import
bank loans - - - 4.8%

R-ZZZAF+-A=+t—R Z%KE

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has the following undrawn

WAREABRITEENT : banking facilities:
—EEAF ZBENE
2009 2008
FEx TEx
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIFIER Floating rates
—RA—F R — expiring within one year 371,545 439,902

R—ERIPNEERFERFE AR

—E-ZEZEOHEREX review at various dates during 2010.

ZEBNFFH

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to
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19 EIEFFEH — &4 19
ELFEREER S BEETENNFIE
BENNRIEE B4 A EA AL
WRIELEFSBARRAR — B AR
B HAEARKS o EFEAT

Deferred income tax — Consolidated

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same tax jurisdiction. The net amounts are as follows:

—BEAE —BTNF
2009 2008
T TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

EIERIEEE - Deferred tax assets:
— 128 B &K ERY — Deferred tax assets to be recovered after
EERBEE more than 12 months 10,950 387
—121E B AU E /Y — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EIERIEEE within 12 months 6,481 6,503
17,431 6,890
EEFIEEE - Deferred tax liabilities:
- 12 RE&&EERN — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after
BEERIBEAE more than 12 months (1,816) (738)
— 12 B NEER — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEBIEEE within 12 months (279) (2,973)
(2,095) 3,711)
ELERIEEE - F58 Deferred tax assets — net 15,336 3,179

IEEFTSHINR B SERRBENT -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:

—BRRE —TENE
2009 2008
FET  TER

HK$’000 HK$'000

F4 Beginning of the year 3,179 12,486
EHEZ Exchange differences 8 -
Rz R (MiEE25) Recognised in the income statement (Note 25) 12,149 (9,307)
FH End of the year 15,336 3,179
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19 EIEFFEH —&ZE @)

EEBREEERBEZE CRITRE—
BB AEEERNEREENESR)WT

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without taking
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction, are as follows:

EEHREERE Deferred tax liabilities:
ROBBFIMN
ki
Withholding
BB E tax on
Tax undistributed wst
depreciation earnings Total
THERT THERT THERT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZEENE—-F—H At 1 January 2008 (4,862) - (4,862)
RIBRERER Recognised in the income statement 148 (610) (462)
RZZEZN\FE+=ZHB=+—H At31December 2008 (4,714) 610) (5,324)
REZRER Recognised in the income statement 1,179 - 1,179
RZBENF+ZA=+—H At31December 2009 (3,535) (610) (4,145)
EERBEE : Deferred tax assets:
REREF
HiEERE  Unrealised Ht @st
Tax losses profit Others Total
THER TEx THEx TEx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZEENE-A—H At 1 January 2008 9,791 6,616 941 17,348
NERRIER Recognised in the income statement (8,470) (205) (170) (8,845)
RZZEENFE+ZHA=1+—H At31 December 2008 1,321 6,411 771 8,503
RIBRRER Recognised in the income statement 11,049 (153) 74 10,970
ERELE Exchange differences 8 - - 8
NZBEAFE+ZB=+—H At31 December 2009 12,378 6,258 845 19,481

T BEAREEERB SR » BRI
BEEUEEREAHERBERNZNI
PTHEARAELEFSHEE KRZIE
ENEFE+ZA=+—H  AEBELE
7 &5 18 350,953,000 T (ZEZE N
F 1324,160,0008 T ) R A &£ E
HEARERBTEWRANELFREH
BE73,883,0008B T(ZEZ N\ F :
63,449,00087T) ° M ARERHKERE
HEE175,457,000/ B T(ZEENE .
106,842,00078 jt ) 7] LASE PR HA 45 8 -
mEsHHRIEEIE 175,496,000 5Tt (=
ZTENE 1 127,304,00058 T ) AT
FREHE -

ZEBNFFH

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2009, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$73,883,000 (2008: HK$63,449,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$350,953,000 (2008: HK$324,160,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income.
Total unrecognised tax losses of HK$175,457,000 (2008:
HK$196,842,000) can be carried forward indefinitely; while
cumulative tax losses of HK$175,496,000 (2008: HK$127,304,000)
will expire within five years.
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19 IREEFTBH — 4S8 @)
HRZTHEARTEBENTEER

&

ZMBERR ZHREEBNEHKR

& I EHZERREN ZFENBIRE
RIEFE {881 816,481,000 T (=&
ZN\F 3,673,000 T) c R=ZZN
F+ZA=+—B  HREBERAE

#£129,6150008 T (ZZEZENF :

73,461,000/875) ©

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated (Continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$6,481,000 (2008:
HK$3,673,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries, as it is management’s intention to reinvest such
amounts in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled
HK$129,615,000 at 31 December 2009 (2008: HK$73,461,000).

20 B 20 Share capital
B+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
“BBAE —ZENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Authorised
3,000,000,0008% & &8 Ik 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
BREE01ET HK$0.1 each 300,000 300,000
ZEREAR
Number of
ordinary
shares
TR FET
’000 HK$’000
SEITRAE Issued and fully paid up
RZZEELE At 31 December 2007,
—EEN\FR 2008 and 2009
—EENF+=A
=+-—H 1,268,400 126,840
B Share options

ROTRBWMEBRETENT :

ERAHERATEREE
HRETESENR —SEBEAER
R MAQATBRESEREERD
HERIBERE NR-ZTBTRE
AATRBERARERABERE
& - % H44,400,00010 BB IR FE -
IRER114BTE228BTAE
MERRERQTRN o RIETERT
FEER  EBRENR-ZZZX
FEEZEN\E=FRRE > TR
—E-RERATHEE - AEE
WELEREENSTURSELD
B S BRE - RIBEXLH
ERFIBRESNE > AQFAFRTE
R HEAINBIRAE o

126 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The Company operates two share option schemes as described
below:

M

Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pre-IPO share options were granted by the Company to certain
directors and a consultant for their services to the Group. In
2006, the Company granted 44,400,000 options under the
Pre-IPO share option scheme to subscribe for shares in the
Company at prices ranging from HK$1.14 to HK$2.28 per
share. These options vested according to a pre-determined
schedule over three years from 2006 to 2008 and will expire
on 10 May 2016. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle these options in cash. No
additional options can be granted under the Pre-IPO share
option scheme.
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20 A &)
1 10

(i)

BB IR T 2
RATRW—EEBEI0FE  E2F
—RNENARBRNBERETE > 7
BRERERTFEIMNES  EE B
B BF - HER - REBA &8
ARAEEBERESAER o THEE
HESERE  ERATERER
mE; (I BEEHERSERAT
(B HREEEH(EALEE
H)BHMBRRATNERES
B Ri)fRIBEIMINEZERZH
HA A ELERRHNARRNE
HIR DR TENRSE - A&
EWELEREENETURSE
2 R A A T S B AR AE o

RITEERBIRAER B K AERE A0 i F 91T

20 Share capital (Continued)
Share options (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme, which
will remain in force for 10 years up to August 2016. Share
options may be granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor
to the Group. The exercise price is determined by the Board
and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of
a share; (i) the closing price of one share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer, which
shall be a business day; and (i) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle these options in
cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

EEZBHNT : related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
—EENE —EENE
2009 2008

BRYY BRTY

TEEE 7B

Average Average
exercise price BBIRHE exercise price BERRE
per share Options per share Options
B T4 BT R
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
W—HA—H At 1 January 1.505 22,500 1.505 22,500
2k Lapsed 2.060 (1,500) - -
Wt+t=-A=+—-H At 31 December 1.466 21,000 1.505 22,500
R+ZA=+—BA{TE Exercisable at 31 December 1.466 21,000 1.480 21,500
ZZTAFFR kEEEZBAERAT 127
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20 R4 (&) 20 Share capital (Continued)
B PR RE () Share options (Continued)
RERKRITEBRENZIIPEERITE Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following
BuT : expiry date and exercise prices:
B
BRITEE Share options
2HA A AR Exercise price —ZEhE Z—EEN\E
Expiry date per share 2009 2008
BT T4 T4
HK$ ’000 ’000
—E-RFHRAT+H 10 May 2016 1.140 9,000 9,000
—E-RFHA+H 10 May 2016 1.596 10,000 10,000
—E-RFHA+H 10 May 2016 2.280 2,000 2,000
—E-RENAtH 7 August 2016 2.060 - 1,500
21,000 22,500
REZE-ZENF+-A=+—HLE During the year ended 31 December 2009, share option cost
B REEERERINBRIVERERED charged to the consolidated income statement was approximately
322,000 T (ZFZ/)\F 1 2,357,000 HK$322,000 (2008: HK$2,357,000).
BIT) °
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BE-TZhF+=A=+—H .IJ:ﬂEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

21 f#fE 21 Reserves
(a) && (a) Consolidated
WRG  EERE
f5EE  Statutory  SMmE
RAEE  Share-based reserve Foreign it REEF
Share  payment (H&)  currency Other  Retained @t
premium reserves (Note) translation reserves earnings Total
T Tén Thn Thn T T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=EENE-F-H  At1January 2008 666,939 7,693 2815 36,303 216,843 755,743 1,686,336
EHAEER Currency translation differences
550 - Group - - - 28179 - - 28179
-Bela - Associates - - . 1551 - . 1551
LE-FHEBAT Change in estimated consideration
BREWDERRER  recelvable from minorty interests
IEREED in relation to dlisposal of interest
(zE14) in a subsidlary (Note 14) - - - - (17,492) - (17,492)
EERRETH Employee share option scheme
~FLBRENEE - value of senices in respect of share
BHBEE(HE2) options granted (Note 20) - 2357 - - - - 2,357
BRRE Dividend paid
-CERERE - 2007fna {4394)  (44304)
-ZEEN\EhH - 2008 interim B70)  @1710)
KOAREFEA Profit atirioutable to equity holders
EiA o the Company - - - - - 33,325 33,325
ERITRE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 666 - - (666 ) -
RZBENE At 31 December 2008
tZA=t-A 666,939 10,050 3,481 66,033 199,351 712,298 1,608,152
EHBEER Currency translation differences
N3 - Group - - . 9% - - 0
-Benq - Associates - - - 28 - - 278
HE-FHELF (Change in estimated consideration
BREWDERRER  recelvable from minorty interests
ZfRE inrelation to dlsposal of nterest
2B (1) ina subsidary (Note 14) - - - - (8.901) - 8,901)
EEERETE Employes share option scheme
-BHBRENEE - value of senvioes in respect of share
RBEE(KE0) options granted (Note 20) - K7/) - - - - 37
-SMERENIEE - value of servioes in respect of share
SRERE(HE20) options lapsed (Note 20) - (1,090) - - - 1,000 i
EHRE Dividend paid
-CEEN\ERY - 2008fnd - - - - - (o) o4)
-ZEENEGH - 2009 interim . - - - - B70) 1710
FARREREA Profit atirioutable to equity holders
LR of the Company - - - - - 121,539 121,530
BETITRE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 1,098 - - (1,098) -
RZBENE At 31 December 2009
tZA=t-A 666,939 9,282 4579 66,410 190,450 791,972 1,129,632
g Representing:
BECEEINERMRE Proposed 2009 final dividend 19,026
Ath Others 72,046
791,972
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21 #E @) 21 Reserves (Continued)
(a) &E @) (a) Consolidated (Continued)

MIEE : Note:

RIERBEAFENZRS » NATRARE K As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s

BERR RCENHB AT BIREEES subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required

EFETHNLEREC IR BEEEEIE to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior

HIRRT B S RINoA —RERBR D years’ losses) to the general reserve and the enterprise expansion

R HEHS o —REMET A/EIKSBE fund, at rates determined by their respective boards of directors. The

FEBBRRTAR  MoEREES general reserve can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised

B AERREER REZE=ZZENEF for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund

+=-A=+—HLEFE » 1,098,000 can be utilised for the development of business operations. During the

T(ZZZ)\F : 666,000/8 T) EDE year ended 31 December 2009, HK$1,098,000 (2008: HK$666,000)

E-REBERILEERES was appropriated to the general reserve and the enterprise expansion
fund.
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21 B @ 21 Reserves (Continued)
(b) &AF (b) Company
MR 4
ER1 ]
JRA%E Share-based HERH REEA
Share payment  Contributed Retained @t
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
TiEn TEr FiEn FiEn FEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEENF At 1 January 2008 666,939 7,693 528,331 44,956 1,247,919
-A-AH
EEBRETE Employee share option scheme
—-HEBRENBE - value of services in respect of
FRAEE (fiFE20) share options granted (Note 20) - 2,357 - - 2357
KARRERFEA Profit attributable to equity holders
a7 of the Company - - - 84,947 84,047
ERE Dividend paid -
-=RELERY - 2007 final - - - (44,394) (44,304)
-ZEE\FHH - 2008 interim - - - (31,710) (31,710)
RIZENE At 31 December 2008 666,939 10,050 528,331 53,799 1,259,119
TZA=t-H
EERRE 2 Employee share option scheme
- R BRI - value of services in respect of
PR E(E (F&E20) share options granted (Note 20) - 322 - - 320
- KWEBRENMRE - value of services in respect of
PR EE (fizE20) share options lapsed (Note 20) - (1,090) - 1,090 -
KRRREREEA Profit attributable to equity holders
B R of the Company - - - 19,810 19,810
ERE Dividend paid
-ZEEN\ERH - 2008 final - - - (10,147) (10,147)
-ZERNETH - 2009 interim - - - (31,710) (31,710)
R-EENE At 31 December 2009
+ZR=1+-H 666,939 9,282 528,331 32,842 1,237,394
i Representing:
BECETNERERE Proposed 2009 final dividend 10,026
Htr Others 13,816
32,842
—EEAFEER ABREERAERAT 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-_ZZNF+=-HA=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

22 FMHHEE DB
BASTEERERA  WER D HAA L
R—RRATHES - DATMT :

22 Expenses by nature
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution costs
and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

—EEZhE —EBENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
SEANEMBIREER  Raw materials and consumables used 1,099,770 | 1,230,627
BERN M Purchases of finished goods 386,274 623,858
NIER>BEA Processing and subcontracting charges 94,975 166,171
FELKERX Manufacturing overheads 31,207 56,700
B X Sample expenses 16,206 25,143
W mRERR Changes in inventories of finished goods
FEERE and work in progress 51,222 (70,424)
M HERRBINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 104,531 92,471
HERE LR b Gain on disposals of leasehold land and
fE FARE R U 25 land use rights (19) _
HEME - HEERRE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HsEE 3,143 1,157
AEL MK Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
2 FARE 85 1,241 1,170
B EERH Amortisation of intangible assets 8,855 7,133
W - HEE R RIERIE Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 17,960
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets 15,050 25,479
EHEEREERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 5,870 26,000
EERERIB X (MFE23) Employment benefit expense (Note 23) 542,648 633,451
EE - [T RRBERX Freight, delivery and insurance expenses 72,766 121,318
HEERX Royalty expense 36,898 64,874
HERS Sales commission 11,269 33,250
HSHE - EER Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses
EERX% 43,777 44,628
FERE A Quota charges 100 3,470
ERERAERME - it Operating lease rental in respect of office equipment
REFHEEHES and land and buildings
—BKEEIR — minimum lease payments 49,336 79,780
—HARHEE — contingent rent 14,974 10,240
RN Auditor’s remuneration 4,094 4,432
FERIRFORE — F4E Impairment of receivables, net
—EWE SR K ZE - trade and bills receivable 9,066 17,591
-&%  BNRK — deposits, prepayments and other receivables
H RN IR 2,217 22,380
—-BERS ~ related parties - 185
FEMR — 358 Write-down of inventories, net 439 22,076
EREE, (W) FE Net exchange loss/(gain) 304 (12,631)
Hipx Other expenses 150,094 164,856
SHERA - SHER D8 Total cost of sales, selling and distribution costs
AR —BR K and general and administrative expenses
THR <58 2,756,307 | 3,413,345

132 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZZTNE+-"A=1T—HLEE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

23 EERMFX

23 Employment benefit expense

—BERE —BTNF
2009 2008
FHT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

TE #Hz Az 2R

Wages, salaries, commission, allowances and bonus

RIE4L 507,911 568,902
BRIKER—REMRTETE]  Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes 20,567 24,574
RS Share-based compensation expense

—BRLERE — share options granted 322 2,357
BRI R E A= Welfare and other benefits 13,848 37,618

542,648 633,451

(a) ;E{?F?Eﬂﬁzlx—ﬁiﬁ\%kﬁ
gl
AEEZHHEBEES MAEFM
AELTE(MRESTE]D - &
TPHBYSIASENREHRT
g - RIBMBEESE  AEBEE
FIREESERERFIMELES
KB & B EERASBIES
SRAEF - BEEREESEANEA
SR EBRA1,00058 T - MEAMR
M B BEMR o REBBRMEFI
BERERKEBFNET -

REBPEARENRERRAG - ANE
EARAEPEAEE TEIME
XEBRKEFEMFEL AR - &
SEESESAEBBERA(EE
TE %2 FRRIEA)H8%ME
MR MAKEAMBBENY
AHI8% Z28%1F KK - M BR AL
Mo AEEBARERKEEF
BERNRNELE - BXEPEARE
SFEEERRAE T XFEIMRIA

FEBRAENBEZMWELRSE
KREESSIRNKEE - AEEZQ
A(EX)REEESAZEERE
WA(BETE  #HE  FERTE
AL) 891 % @) 5T BIEFR - AREERRE
RINBRASRARRBENNESE °

PR EEETBIERRSN  AEESEE
R EBAMNEREE -

“ETAFFR

(a) Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution

plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and the employee are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. The Group has no further obligations for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement schemes
for certain of its employees in Mainland China. The Group’s
employees make monthly contributions to the schemes at
approximately 8% of the relevant income (comprising wages,
salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group contributes
8% to 28% of such income and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement schemes are
responsible for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group participates in a retirement scheme for qualified
employees of its subsidiary in Vietnam. Each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 1% of the employees’ relevant income (comprising
wages, salaries, allowances and bonus). The Group has no
further obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.

The Group has no material obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond contributions to the above schemes.
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

23 EERABEZ @)

(b) EEM<E

BE_ZTNF+-A=t—-HILt
FE  ARBEESHHMEOT :

23 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the year

ended 31 December 2009 is set out below:

Effeitd

RBRREN
il

EXHF  Share-based
Employer’s compensation

MERL  EBEE  contribution inrespect of
e #4 Discretionary Housing ~to retirement share @y
EEfE Name of Director Fees Salaries ~ bonuses allowances  schemes options Total
TER TR Tén TER TR TR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
HiiEE Executive directors

ZER Li Kwok Tung, Roy - 3,362 1,000 - 12 - 4,374
REY Lai Ching Ping - 2801 1,000 - 12 - 3813
BEE () Chow Chi Wai (Note 3) - 3 i . q . “
&E Cheung Chi - 1,821 900 - 12 - 273
87 Lee Kok Leung - 986 700 180 12 - 1,878
ERE(D) Wong Wai Tek Victor (Note (o) - 905 - = 6 39 1,233

BU#HES Independent non-executive directors
EZR MaKa Chun 100 - - - - _ 100
RrE Chan Kwong Fai 100 - - - - - 100
BRE Kvian Kai Cheong 150 - - - = - 150
BEX Wun Kwang 100 - - - - - 100
450 9918 3,600 180 55 322 14,525
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

e e

B3t

23 EERABEZ @)
(b) EEME ()
BE-_ZZ\F+-A=+—HL
EE . ADRASESHMLSMT

Name of Director

23 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:

#e
Salaries
Tén
HK$'000

&
Total

TR
HK§'000

#iEE

FER
REY
Bk
RE

Fan

BUFHGEE

B5a
R
BRE
it o

Executive directors
Li Kwok Tung, Roy
Lai Ching Ping
Chow Chi Wal
Cheung Chi

Lee Kwok Leung

Indlependent non-executive directors

Ma Ka Chun
Chan Kwong Fai
Kwan Kal Cheong
Wun Kwang

3,35
2,783
782
1,790
982

~

S} S

~>

6,004
5,390
1963
3,605
2,172

S S

100
100
150
100

9,692

19,574

REEZ-ZTNF+-R=1—H
LFE BEEERREAME

(Z2BNF  H) -

NEER

BAEREER-ZEZTNEFE—A
Z+ABBHME -

ERERER-ZEZNEFE-A
ZTAEEERE AR=
FLANBBHE -

Chow Chi Wai resigned on 29 January 2009.

KREMZRBFRLF

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: Nil).

Wong Wai Tak Victor was appointed on 29 January 2009 and resigned
on 8 July 2009.
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BE-TZhF+=A=t—H .IJ:ﬂEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

23 EEEAM L @) 23 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(c) ABEREHF AL (c) Five highest paid individuals
BE-ZEANFE+-BA=1+—HIt The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
FEAEFRAEREHFALTEE=S Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 include three
Z(ZBEENE  @OR)ES - #E (2008: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
WS EHE R LMD - EREA analysis presented above. The emoluments paid/payable to
S ENESRMEB(ZEENE | — the remaining two individuals (2008: one individual) during the
BIALTHBEWT ¢ year are as follows:

—EETAFE —ETNF
2009 2008
BT FER

HK$’000 HK$'000

K¥ - EREER Basic salaries, housing allowances and
HAth2 A, other allowances 2,421 2,040
BIETEAL Discretionary bonuses 3,581 184
RO ERE X Share-based compensation expense
—ERbBRE — share options granted - 768
RIREF Retirement benefit
- REMKETE — defined contribution schemes 12 12
6,014 3,004
(d) 8z2=FFAF+=A=1+—H1 (d) During the year ended 31 December 2009, no emoluments
FE > APAMEL NSNS FEM were paid by the Company to any of the directors or the five
EERTERSHFALT  EAMA highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
RBEMAREE VB REEE joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2008:
B(ZEZNF &) Nil).
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

24 FBEUW AR KK 24 Finance income and costs
—EEAE ZZENF
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FIEUA Interest income from
—RITER — Bank deposits 4,478 8,555
—HEMB A RERAR — Other receivable from disposal of
EENEM interest in a subsidiary
FEWnR =R (BaE14) (Note 14) 1,566 3,449
- BEFEREEFH — Customers for extended credit terms - 346
REWA Finance income 6,044 12,350
F B H Interest expense on
—RITEEREX - Bank borrowings and overdrafts (4,583) (5,613)
—BNEEEE - Licence fees payable - (84)
BhE AN Finance costs (4,583) (5,697)
BMERAFE Net finance income 1,461 6,653
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NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 FriSBiBE X

?ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁaffﬁ%miﬁfﬁr@%&ﬁ%
FIEFLE16.5%(ZEEN\F 1 16.5%)
FTIRIRE o

FERBEARERLRESE ZHBRRR
BERNRARAFEAR2E%(ZFEN
F 1 25%) BREMPEIRRERERSE
Bi o RIBEABUERE - ZSEPEA
BB AR RBE QR RINGE
BEhEFTIEGEDRE  EMFATER
RBNEEMER - MATER-2Z
NFRER=FAEFXR -

BINE B R P B RBERIN) BRI 2 BIE

ERAFEGTERTENIE AR EE
EMEBRZERRTHRENE

REESBRERTBRAFTEBE XIS -

25 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Subsidiaries and associates established and operated in Mainland
China are subject to Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax at rate
of 25% for the year (2008: 25%). In accordance with the applicable
tax regulations, subsidiaries and associates established in Mainland
China as wholly owned foreign enterprises or sino-foreign joint
ventures are entitled to full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax
for the first two years and a 50% reduction in Enterprise Income
Tax for the next three years, commencing no later than 2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland China)
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the year at the applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The amounts of income tax expense charged to the consolidated
income statement represent:

—BERE —ZBN\F
2009 2008
T FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BIERFT1SHL — Current income tax —
EBAER Hong Kong profits tax 39,682 29,993
B KRFEEATER Mainland China enterprise income tax 3,024 13,142
BINTIEEL Overseas income tax 12 _
IEFE SR (MisE19) Deferred income tax (Note 19) (12,149) 9,307
30,569 52,442
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

25 FrigBRif X @)

REERRT S B ANE R AP IR ELE AE
ARGEBERER M INEFIREEH

25 Income tax expense (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

MIERESEMERINT : rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:
—EThEFE —TTEN\HF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEERLEE AR Profit before income tax excluding share of
B BB profit/loss of associates
FriS BT E 134,669 82,100
INAESE 257 38 A B =R Weighted average applicable domestic tax rates 20.9% 27.8%
LERNERS Tax calculated at weighted average domestic tax
B =)0 A B9 hnfE 13 rates applicable to profits in the respective
R B T+ E AR IE places/countries 28,138 22,837
BESE . Tax effects of:
BARBUA Income not subject to tax (2,966) (1,023)
A HIFHIBE X Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 15,284 9,093
RIBRRE 2 & Effect of tax concession (22,065) (5,317)
I R RIEE Fr SR Y Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was
IR IR FEE recognised, net 13,093 27,293
RBEFEEREGBRZ),  (Over)/under provision in prior years
T2 (144) (1,218)
EBNEHENEE Change in Hong Kong profits tax rate - 335
Hith Others (771) 442
B X Tax charge 30,569 52,442

ZEBNFFH
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

25 FrSHiB X ()
BE-ZZEN\F+-B=+—HILHF
E BARE-ZSZENFNAE—HEES
FEHRRER175%ERE16.5% @

ErHREE=EEAE+=A=1t—H
TEEROMELEHBERAFTRE
16.5%EH5tE ©

L hnAE T S95E A B R B = E
RAESRERRNREENASZB T
o BZERBBENRTEBEREHR - A
ARAEREEERIE TELEREE
Eo

26 SRAER
(a) E&

FREREFTIRIEARQ B RER

B AEEEEER 121,539,000

BT (ZZZN\F : 33,325,000%
T REREBITZERMETH

B #91,268,400,000 R (=ZZEE N

£ 1 1,268,400,0000) 51 & -

25 Income tax expense (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, as a result of the
change in the Hong Kong profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
effective from 1 April 2008 deferred taxes expected to reverse from
the year ended 31 December 2009 have been re-measured using

the new rate of 16.5%.

The change in weighted average applicable domestic tax rates, as
stated above, is mainly caused by a change in mix of profits earned
by different group companies which are subject to different tax
rates and recognition of certain deferred tax assets in respect of tax

loss carry-forward.

26 Earnings per share
(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$121,539,000 (2008:
HK$33,325,000) and on the weighted average number of
approximately 1,268,400,000 (2008: 1,268,400,000) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

—ETAE —ZENE
2009 2008
RATBREEEA Profit attributable to equity holders
PR A (F87T) of the Company (HK$’000) 121,539 33,325
SEITEBRKN Weighted average number of
IREE & (FIR) ordinary shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 | 1,268,400
FREARBF GBA)  Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 9.6 2.6
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

26 BREF @)
(b) #58

26 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted

BREERNTIERAZRAERE
E#EEEBRM AR MEFS
EETEBERBEME - RIEE
PR rERT & (FYaE20) 7] T 31T RVARAD
AE-BEEBERENEER -
N2 RIAR 5 1 AR AT 150 B R AR P B
RBENEBEEFLTENERE
ARZEAFE(NEAITRORNE
BN FIEImE) WEHNROH
B o DHFETE ARG EE RBERR
ITREBREMBRITHROBEFLH
EL#g o

BEE_ZR\ER-ZTAFTZ
A=+t-BLFE SRESR
MNESREABAER - REAE
ECER)\FR-FFNEFTZA
=+ —HILFE » RATRRER
BOEBREMELEETEERA
RigEsE -

27 RE

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Shares issuable under the share option schemes (Note 20) are
the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A calculation is made
in order to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average market
price of the Company’s shares in the relevant periods) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

The diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2009 are the same as the basic earnings
per share as the potential ordinary shares arising from the
share options granted by the Company outstanding during the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 were anti-dilutive.

27 Dividends
—EEAF ZEENE
2009 2008
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHERE Interim dividend paid of HK2.5 cents
BREBER2.58 (2008: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share
(ZZZNEF 2.58) 31,710 31,710
EEARERE Proposed final dividend of HK1.5 cents
FREBER.58 (2008: HKO0.8 cents) per ordinary share
(ZZZNF : 0.881L) 19,026 10,147
50,736 41,857

RZE-—ZF=A++tHETWEE
b EEEEBREREREERIS
BIL(ZZEENE : 0.8781l) - BER
BIWBAZSTIEHRER - AR
B HEgrRMAEE-E-TF+=

B=1t—HLEFENREBEREA - 2010.

ZEBNFFH

At a meeting held on 17 March 2010, the Board proposed a
final dividend of HK1.5 cents (2008: HK0.8 cents) per share.
The proposed dividends have not been reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December

kEREZEBRBFRAT 141



BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 EEEHE
(a) EEFREREHIR

28 Cash generated from operations

(a) Reconciliation of cash generated from operations

—EEhE —ETENEF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
PR H ADE R Profit before income tax 137,584 79,216
BRTYISERAZ Adjustments for:
- B EERH — Amortisation of intangible assets 8,855 7,133
—HE+H R b — Amortisation of leasehold land and
5 PR 8 land use rights 1,241 1,170
— % - HBRREITE — Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 104,531 92,471
- HEHET R — Gain on disposal of leasehold land and
+ HhfF A RER UL R land use rights (19) -
— HHEYE - e - Loss on disposal of property, plant and
RREREE equipment 3,143 1,157
— A ENEEREE — Gain from a change in estimate of
SEAEE RS licence fees payable - (650)
-RPME — Share-based compensation 322 2,357
- B EERE — Impairment of intangible assets 15,050 25,479
— W - BB RRERE — Impairment of property, plant
and equipment - 17,960
—TAHEE — Impairment of available-for-sale
SREERE financial assets 5,870 26,000
- GFERE-F5E — Impairment of inventories, net 439 22,076
—EWRFORE — 358 - Impairment of receivables, net 11,283 40,156
—REWA - FEE - Finance income — net (1,461) (6,653)
—E(REE DT CER)) EE — Share of (profits)/losses of associates (2,915) 2,884
—-EREE (W) —FE — Exchange loss/(gain), net 304 (12,631)
HEESEE Changes in working capital:
-FE — Inventories 79,542 (86,582)
—ERE SRR EE — Trade and bills receivable 220,399 (69,803)
—-%&& - BARAKR — Deposits, prepayments and
H{th FEUIIR X other receivables 20,537 (23,256)
-EFEZERAREE - Trade and bills payable (118,773) 5,297
— FESHIR AR H AL AR IR K - Accruals and other payables (29,789) 14,352
—STENEEES — Payment of licence fees payable = (3,578)
EEMBHES Cash generated from operations 456,143 134,555
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

28 EERBHRE®

(b) REERERP  HEHEL

28 Cash generated from operations (Continued)
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal

MRk i EFAREAR I - B of leasehold land and land use rights, and property,
S /8 X
BEkFREMEREERR plant and equipment comprise
—ETAE —ZTENE
2009 2008
FHT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEHRE -t K £ thfF AR : Disposal of leasehold land and land use rights:
R TEDFHE (Ff=E6) Net book amount (Note 6) 1,202 _
HERE TR ik Gain on disposal of leasehold land and
FERAERN K E land use right 19 _
HERE TR ik Proceeds from disposal of leasehold land
fFAEFRBRIE and land use rights 1,221 _
HEYE - MR RE - Disposal of property, plant and
equipment:
R EDFHE (FEET) Net book amount (Note 7) 6,192 3,339
HEYE - MEERRIEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (3,143) (1,157)
HEYIH MRS EFTBIE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 3,049 2,182

20 HZAEE
RoZBEAE+-—A=+—0  &&£H
WBEARAGE(-BSN\E  8) o

30 AE-FKKE
(a) EAHEIE
NEE

A SRINERBENER

29 Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2008: Nil).

30 Commitments - Group
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date

BT : but not yet provided for is as follows:
—EERFE ZTENF
2009 2008
FHET FHExT
HK$’000 HK$'000

ST NEAREBERN Property, plant and equipment contracted

Y% - BRNREZE but not provided for 9,072 27,993
R-EFEAFE+=-A=+—H > K As at 31 December 2009, the Group had commitments to

SEAF O TR E RERI
MEBABEABEINER  TEHLE
#76,533,0008 T (ZEENF :
115,525,000/ 7T ) °

ZEBNFFH

inject additional capital into certain subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, totalling approximately HK$76,533,000 (2008:
HK$115,525,000).
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BE-TZhF+=A=t+—H .IJ:ﬂEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

30 FAE—ANEBE¢E) 30 Commitments - Group (Continued)
(b) B&EHERE (b) Operating lease commitments
REFIRBAORHEEEHE S The Group leases various retail shops, offices, warehouses

HEZHZEE BOAZE - BER
WARRME - HEZETRER
EASTIRA R EEE - AEERE
FAHBEEERE R REEEAS
R

and office equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

—EERF —BENF
2009 2008
FHR T

HK$’000 HK$’000

—FR Within one year 50,807 49,059
—FZRE Later than one year and not later than five years 116,803 96,019
hF# Later than five years 57,002 67,495

224,612 212,573

FREEREEREESEE A
o YTEEEMNEAEES (FAR
BE) (WA &E  ZFEME
—REFARREE AR E D LR
BHEZEAHEEE RAAT
TEBSAEEZSHEIEEZE

144 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The above lease commitments only include commitments for
basic rentals, and do not include commitments for additional
rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be
determined generally by applying pre-determined percentages
to future sales less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as
it is not possible to determine in advance the amount of such
additional rentals.
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31 BEEFRS

i — S BRI EESBEEHS —FH
HE-FTNMBREBERREEAZE
B URZHEEHSEAEBEATE

& AIRREES -

AEBHERBEZBEETMEILZ
‘ATQuinta Asia Limited (E#2KR D
AES - ZATRZEEREFE+TZA
=+ —H#EBARATHS8.56%KH °
RATEERHQuinta Asia LimitedB

RAEERRT -

BRI EGRE B HRRDEMED AT
BEN  AEEHERELBETUTE

B2X5
(a) SHEEm

31 Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by Quinta Asia Limited (the immediate
holding company), a company incorporated in the British Virgins
Islands, which owns approximately 58.56% of the Company’s
shares as at 31 December 2009. The Company’s directors regard
Quinta Asia Limited as being the ultimate holding company.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions were
carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales of goods

—EEAF ZEENE
2009 2008
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B ARIDEMRE—  Minority shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited 60,337 31,803
SBIRBFHENERLE -

(b) BE&Em

Goods are sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties.

(b) Purchases of goods

—EBREF —ZTNE
2009 2008
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEBATDEPIREI —  Minority shareholders of subsidiaries —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited 2,349 1,857
Diadora S.p.A Diadora S.p.A 34 24
AEBMEFL /AT —  Associate of the Group -
Fu Jin Bowker Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited
Company Limited 161,901 119,549
164,284 121,430

EmEELHENEREE

ZEBNFFH

Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by both
parties.
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31 FEEAFRS @)
(c) BERBRELE

31 Related party transactions (Continued)
(c) Purchases of services and royalty

—EEhE —TENF
2009 2008
FHET FEx
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BERK Purchases of services
MEATDEME —  Minority shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited - 320
ZREEWFLEHESIERE — Jointly controlled entity of the Group —
Gadlee Gadlee International Inc.
International Inc. - 5,756
- 6,076
B ENEEE Royalty paid/payable
MEBATDEMRE —  Minority shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited 36,898 64,874

BERBEIRARE S HENER
BEES T HAEE o

146 Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Purchases of services primarily relate to commission paid to
related parties on the basis mutually agreed by both parties.
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31 Related party transactions (Continued)

31 FEEAFRS @)
(d) $HE BEEREREFRE

(d) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of

H o FER R goods and services
—EThE —TENEF
2009 2008
FHET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEWERE S FIE (235 Receivables from related parties
REWE ZEFA) :  (included in trade receivables):
B ATADEMREK —  Minority shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited 12,745 2,022
FETRRE S 2IE (235 Payables to related parties
EAE SRR : (included in trade payables):
KB ATDEME—  Minority shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited 1,590 2,920
Diadora S.p.A Diadora S.p.A = 2
AEEBE AT - Associate of the Group —
Fu Jin Bowker Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited
Company Limited 31,557 46,077
33,147 48,999
FERBEESZE(EIE Payable to a related party
RESHIRR R (included in accruals and other payables):
Hth FEATIRTRA)
MEBATDEIRE—~ Minority shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited 7,421 12,544

FEREREERAREANR-RES

FEHRA -

ZEBNFFH

All amounts are unsecured and payable within normal trade
credit terms.
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BE-_TZhF+=-A=1+—HLFE Fortheyearended 31 December 2009

3N BEFRS @) 31 Related party transactions (Continued)
(e) BAMEATRIE (e) Amounts due to subsidiaries
ENAHBATRIRIEY AEEKI - &7 Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
BREREHFES - repayable on demand.
n TEEEAEMS () Key management compensation

—ETAE —BINF
2009 2008
FHT  FER

HK$’000 HK$'000

e~ A KRIER Salaries, bonus and allowances 18,352 24,602
RIREF Retirement benefits
—RAEMFETE — defined contribution schemes 98 106
B 17 $REA BE =2 Share-based compensation expense
—RHEERE - share options granted 322 2,357
18,772 27,065
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[Exg ] RARELE
[RAF] KEEEZERERA

A ORZ-ZEERF
+=ZB+=H%MH2

BEAMRINZH
RERATE
[EBEAL] FHRAIFTERE
[DiadorafH | Diadora S.p.A. K& HFf}
BAaE
[ Diadora HKJ Diadora Hong Kong

Limited » &Diadora
SpAWEEWEL
=i

[DiadoraZE & | ENADiadoraigZ &
B MRES - HE

KBE IR 588
[Diadora S.p.A. ] Diadora S.p.A. * R
BARFIFEME L Z A
Al KBZ2EERR
(BIEAER)
[EE] RATES
(BB BUME R
[ Rz RE AR B F
EBRAEE
[A&EE ] KARREMBAR
[l BBLEERBT
[&#&] FEBEBENTHE
[EmBHE] AR RMGBBEBREE

REENBH  BI=

ZEEXFNAARA

(EH=)
ZETAFFER

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the following
expression have the following meanings:

“Board” the board of Directors of the Company
“Company” Win Hanverky Holdings Limited, an exempted

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability on 13 December 2005

“Connected Person” has the meaning ascribed to it under the
Listing Rule

“Diadora Group” Diadora S.p.A. and its subsidiaries

“Diadora HK” Diadora Hong Kong Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Diadora S.p.A.

“Diadora Products” products bearing the Diadora trademark and
distributed in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macau

“Diadora S.p.A.” Diadora S.p.A. (under liquidation), a company
incorporated in Italy, a substantial shareholder
of Winor

“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company

“EU” the European Union

“Greater China” Mainland China, Macau, Hong Kong and

Taiwan region

“Group” or “we” or the Company and its subsidiaries
“our” or “Us”
“HK$” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong
“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in the PRC
“Listing Date” the date of commencement of dealings in

our Shares on the Main Board, which is on
Wednesday, 6 September 2006
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“Listing Rules”

“Main Board”

“ NYL”

uOEMu

“Offer Price”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option(s)”

“PRC” or
“Mainland China”

“RMB”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Stock Exchange”

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

the stock market operated by the Stock
Exchange prior to the establishment of
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (excluding the options market)
and which stock market continues to be
operated by the Stock Exchange in parallel
with the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (for avoidance of doubt, the
Main Board excludes the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange)

a brand named New York Laundry

acronym for original equipment manufacturer,
a business that manufactures or purchases
from other manufacturers and possibly

modifies goods or equipment for branding
and resale by others

the offer price of HK$2.28 per share

the options granted by the Company to
certain employees, among others, prior to
the listing of the Company

the People’s Republic of China, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company

shareholders of the Company
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,

a wholly owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited
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Umbro International
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“T&S Group”

“T&S HK”

“TSG BVI”

“TSG Group”

“TSG International”

“Umbro Group”

“Umbro Distributor
Agreement”

“Umbro International”

“Umbro Licence
Agreement”

T&S HK and its subsidiaries

Team & Sports Limited, a 60%-owned
subsidiary of the Company

TSG (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated
in the BVI, a substantial shareholder of Win
Sports

TSG BVI and its subsidiaries

TSG International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, being a wholly
owned subsidiary of TSG BVI

Umbro International and its subsidiaries

the distributor agreement dated 8 February
2007 and entered between Umbro
International Limited, one of the members of
the Umbro Group, and T&S HK in respect of
the sale and distribution of Umbro Products
in the Greater China and purchases of
Umbro Products from the Umbro Group,
superseding the Umbro Licence Agreement

Umbro International Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, a
substantial shareholder of T&S HK

the licence agreement entered into between
T&S HK and Umbro Licensing Limited, a
member of the Umbro Group, on 24 May
2001 in respect of the sale and distribution of
Umbro Products in the PRC and Hong Kong
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»

“Umbro Products

“US"

“Win Sports”

“Win Sports Group”

“Winor”

“Winor Group”

a selected range of sportswear and other
products bearing the Umbro brand and
distributed by the Group pursuant to the
Umbro Distributor Agreement

the United States of America

Win Sports Limited, a 75%-owned subsidiary
of the Company

Win Sports and its subsidiaries

Winor International Company Limited, being

an indirect 100%-owned subsidiary of our
Company

Winor and its subsidiaries

Annual Report 2009
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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
AEEEZERERQH

6th Floor, Phase 6, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building
481-483 Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNEESILEA81-4835 BB M T E K E6H61E

www.winhanverky.com
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